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We are a leading developer of Coal Bed Methane
(*CBM") in the UK and producer of North Sea quality
gas from virgin coal seams. The Group has licences to
extract oil and gas across the north of Wales and the
north of England covering an area of more than 1,656
square kilometres. Mid case GIIP (Gas initially In place)
is up 142% from 893 at year end 2007 to 2,169 Billion
cubic feet (“bcf”) (source Equipoise Solutions Ltd) and
independent analysis by world leading reservoir
engineers, DeGolyer and McNaughton, confirms
Contingent Recoverable Resource of 733 bcf of gas,
equivalent to 116 million barrels of oil.

In conjunction with our joint venture partner Nexen
Exploration U.K. Limited (“Nexen”) we have now drilled
seven wells and multiple lateral legs. Having carried out
extensive production testing at our Doe Green site in
Cheshire, we are now selling electricity through our
on-site generation, a UK first. Our initial production
rates indicate that we should exceed our threshold for
commerciality.
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Our highlights

Overview
Our highlights

Operational

Gas Sales - First electricity sales from CBM
production in the UK

Our initial production rates indicate that we
should exceed our threshold for commerciality

Gas in Place — Mid case up 142% to 2,169 bcf;
independently verified based on latest data

Contingent Recoverable Resource — World renowned
DeGolyer and McNaughton confirms 733 bcf

Licensed acreage — 69% increase to 1,656 square
kilometres

Drilling - three additional wells and several
lateral legs

Licence commitments — Satisfied until 2011

VIV VoV V] b Vb

Production sites — Two Field Development Plans
approved, an initial 20 sites identified

Financial

Revenue - £992 thousand

Operating loss — £458 thousand

Loss for the year — £386 thousand

Cash - £2.3 million at 31 December 2008

Carry agreements - sufficient for 2009 and
2010 budgeted work programmes

N AR 22N 2R 2R

Funding — £4.5 million available at 31 December 2008

Gas initially in place (net to IGas)

2,169

2008

Licensed acreage

1,656™

2008

Growth year on year +142%

2008 2,169
2007 893

2006 607

Growth year on year +69%

2008 1,656
2007 976

2006 765
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Our strategy 2008 - Now delivered

At the beginning of 2008 our immediate objectives were:

- Commence initial gas sales from at least one property by the end of
2008; after dedision to carry out further drifling we are now selling
electrigty from our gas

- Secure other routes to market
-  Gather data and production experience to allow independent reserve
auditors to classify a proportion of our gas as “recoverable rescurce”
- Fulffil licence obligations to secure licences into second terms
->  Apply for further acreage in 13th onshore licensing round !
2009
Our Strategy remains to develop our UK asset base and our immediate
objectives for 2009 are:

- Doe Green - Carry out lang-term production test and continue
commerdial gas sales

Swallowcroft — Establish a fully permitted production site

Point of Ayr — Assess potential for a conventional gas play to
supplement Contingent Recoverable Resource

Land bank - Establish a bank of permitted drill sites

I Y

Reserves — Establish a long-term plan for the conversion of
Contingent Recoverable Resource to commercially recoverable reserves

About Us
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What we do

Overview

What we do

IGas produces gas in the UK from CBM.

CBM is a naturally occurring gas, similar to North Sea
gas, trapped in virgin coal seams. Where significant
volumes of this gas are held in the coal and the coal is
suitably permeable (and therefore allows the gas to
flow through it), it is possible to drill into the coal and
extract the water within the strata thereby reducing
the pressure in the reservoir, and allow the gas to
flow through the bore hole to be produced and sold.

While CBM production is in its infancy in the UK, CBM
already forms a significant part of the energy mix in
North America and Australia.
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Chairman’s
statement

Overview
Chairman's staternent

The financial year ending 31 December 2008 was
certainly a year of challenges for many businesses!
The changing environment from the start of the year
through the very high prices for commodities reached
in the summer followed by the collapse in both
financial markets and hydrocarbon prices has formed
the backdrop for our year. However, | am pleased to
report that we have now delivered all our stated
near-term objectives and have continued to build on
the foundations we laid in 2007 as set out in my
statement to you last year.

These foundations have three integral parts:

01 Deliverability of gas

- At Doe Green, since year end, we have been granted a Field Development Plan {*FDP"} and
started to produce gas; now being used to generate electricity for sale to the grid.

- At Doe Green we dedided to carry out additional driling before commencing further
production tests and during dewatering our initial production rates indicate that we should
exceed our threshold for commerdality.

= In Swallowcroft, we drilled two more assay wells, obtained planning permission to drill
at Keele University and have been granted a Field Development Plan over acreage in
the Pottenes.

- World renowned DeGolyer and MacNaughton's report on our Contingent Recoverable
Resources provides independent confirmation of a potential 733 bcf, with a “most fikely™
of 503 bcf; all net to 1Gas

02 Asset growth

~> Successful 13th licensing round applications have resulted in us being awarded interests in
three more licences over an additional 680 sgquare kilometres.

- These new awards build on our core position and knowledge base in the north west.

= In September we announced a framework agreement with Peel Envirenmental Ltd to allow
access to sites within their land holding for the production of CBM. We have now identified
a further 20 potential production sites in the north west to be evaluated.
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Overview
Chairman’s statement

-> Independent verification of mid case gas initially in place has been revised upwards by
142% 10 2,169 bef, based on latest data; source Equipoise Solutions Ltd.

- We are now also evaluating the potential for conventional hydrocarbion plays within our
acreage position. This activity is particularly focused at Point of Ayr.

03 Financial flexibility

- On 30 lune 2008 we closed a fund raising of £2.1 million before expenses at 65p per share.

-> This additional funding combined with our carry agreements with Nexen leaves us very well
placed 1o continue to add value to our assets through 2009, 2010 and into 2011.

I would fike to draw particular attention to the report prepared independently by world
renowned DeGolyer and McNaughton on our Contingent Recoverable Resources. In this
they opined that we have undetermined contingent recoverable resources as shown in
the table below:
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(Source: 1Gas Resource audt conducted by D&M. *Society of Petrcleum Engineers. PRMS Guide for Noa-Technicat Users™}

In categorising the resource as “undetermined contingert” D&M are supporting the
defiverability of the gas from the acreage but not commenting on the commerdality of the
proposition. As we are now producing and selling gas from our assets, our objectives for 2009
are dearly to further demonstrate not only the deliverability but also the commerdial viability of
what we own.

Whilst there is some uncertainty in the macro backdrop to our business, several key themes
continue to develop positively and these will support our growth, Firstly CBM as a sector within
the oil and gas markets continues to develop strongly. Very significant merger and acquisition
("M&A") activity in 2008, particularly for CBM players in Australia, made CBM M&A activity the
{astest growing sector in what was otherwise a contracting market. Also pipeline interruptions
in Russia and the Ukraine again focused minds on the importance of energy security in the UK.
Meanwhile an article in the Wall Street Journal in February 2009 pointed cut that “Coal searmn
gas is also seen as a greener alternative to other fossil fuels. it contains relatively little carbon
diaxide and sufphur, so it’s more clean-burning than coal, ol or conventional gas.” Coal seam
gas is another name for CBM.

twould like to welcome Cenkos to the team having taken over as nominated adwiser and broker
since May this year. Finally | would like to thank our executive and non-executive teams for
sugcessfully steering the Company through 2008 and into 2009 and delivering on cur strategy.
While the backdrop for 2009 is still uncertain, | am confident that we are well placed to
continue 1o add value {0 our assets and demonstrate the ability of our asset base to deliver
secure gas, onshore.

Francis Gugen
Executive Chairman
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Business review
Operations

Gas production

Four Oaks

Overview
Business review

The business of the Group is the development of a series of coal bed
methane assets in England and Wales with the objective of becoming a
significant onshore producer of gas.

Development of these assets is taking place in conjunction with our joint
venture partner Nexen. In all cases Nexen is operator of the assets and
the Group is the non-operating partner.

During the year and in early 2008, activity has concentrated on achieving
commercial production from Four Qaks, on the Swallowcroft acreage
and on gaining three further licences covering two new geographical
areas adjacent to our existing properties; North Dee and Parkside.

The Group now has a pilot production site at Doe Green in Cheshire, between Warrington and
Widnes. We have drilled two wells at this location and have drilled several lateral legs from ane
well. We have now lined a total of ¢. 2,500 feet of lateral within this well and this is now
producing gas to surface.

In December 2008 an electricity generating set was instalted at the site, which is now powered
by our CBM and has capadity to export enough electrity to power 1,200 homes.

This pifot site represents, we believe, the first commercially produced gas from CBM in the UK.

In 2009 we intend to fully permit a second production site in our Swallowcroft acreage. The
final location for such a site has yet to be determined, but this could be at Brancote, where
many of the necessary permits have recenily been granted.

Much progress has been made in this area with activity in both PEDL 116 and PEDL 145. At Doe
Green in PEDL 145 we now have our first production site in operation. Generators installed at
the site can export electricity o the grid generated from the methane produced. To date we
have only accessed one seam of a potential thirteen seams available at this locatien.

In April 2008 we spudded a well at Fox Hill Farm within PEDL 116. This weli was plugged and
abandoned as planned and the results from this well helped to further corroborate previous
samples and coring results. This well also fulfilled the licence obligations for PEDL 116 and
ensures the extension of the licence into its second term.
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Swallowcroft

OQverview
Business review

The Swallowcroft area includes licences PEDL 40-1, 56-1, 78-1, 115-1 and 115-2. The area
extends from, Newcastle-under-Lyme in the west across to Lichfield in the east, within the
county of Staffordshire.

Central Swallowcroft (PEDLs 40-1 and 56-1); Geologically, the area is formed by a series of
open, westward-plunging anticines and syndines, outcropping rocks of Triassic to
Carboriferous Age at surface, with Carboniferous Westphalian coal measures sequence
outcropping to the north of the licences, where they were worked as part of the Staffordshire
coalfields. A large fault, the Wem Fault, downthrows Carboniferous sirata to the very westerly
edge of the licences and although quantification of this throw is wncertain, it s likely that the
Carboniferous strata to the west of this fault are too deep for CBM exploration at present.

Greater Swallowcroft {PEDLs 781, 115-1 and 115-2); Geologically, the area under licence is
formed by strata of Carboniferous and Permo-Triassic Age. Solid geclogical maps show the area
to be generally dipping from south to north, with a complex of north-south trending normal
faults, cammonty down throwing to the east in the case of PEDL 78-1 and to the west in the
case of PEDLs 1151 and 2.

Extensive work has now been undertaken to select appropriate sites from which to drill, using
the Group's existing geological data whilst being ever mindful of the Group’s cbjective to limit
environmenial impacts.

On 31 July 2008, a well was spudded at Willoughbridge in PEDL 78-1. This assay well was
drilted to core and log the coal measures and extend our knowledge of the coal seam
development in the area, The well successfully achieved its objectives; proving better coal seam
development than had been expected and, as planned, was plugged and abandoned ir early
September. The drilling of this well satisfies the commitments under the first term of the licence
and extends it into its second term.

Awell was spudded at Fradley in October 2008 and this fulfilled the ticence obligtions for PEDL
115-2 and ensures the extension of the licence into its second term,

In PEDL 56—1, an agreement has been struck with Keele University to drill within the curtilage of
their new science park and to supply the University with gas produced from the site. Planning
has recently been obtained for initial drilling.

On 30 April 2009 we were granted a Field Development Programme (“FDP*) by the
government Department of Energy and Climate Change (“DECC"} for the commerdial
production of CBM gas from our sites in the Swallowcroft area in Staffordshire,
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North Dee

Overview
Business review

PEDL 184 and PEDL 199 are kocated in North Dee, incorporating the areas around Ellesmere
Port and Runcorn. The area extends between the tidal estuary of the Dee and the Mersey, with
the peninsula of the Wirral (Cheshire) lying between them. The areawas awarded to a
partnership of Nexen and 1Gas as part of the 13th round of onshore licences announced by the
Secretary of State on 28 May 2008.

These licences target the CEM potentiat of the eastern extension of the North Wales coalfields
and the south western extension of the Lancashire coalfields. These coals are proven 1o extend
eastwards for at least 20 kilometres in the North Dee area from Buckley to Chester, and
southwards from the Wirral to Wrexham.

The licence area lies on the south eastern margin of the East Irish Sea basin and on the north
western margin of the Permo-Triassic Cheshire basin, forming pant of the larger Pennine coal
measures basin. The Wesphalian Pennine coal measures group of the Pennine basin extends as
outcrop o at subcrap across northem England to the west and east of the Pennines, central
England and north Wales. The licence area forms part of the south westerly edge of the basin.

The south western area of PEDL 190 indudes the Collinge Borehole drilled by the National Coal
Board {"NCB") as part of an old coalfield exploration programme. The Collinge borehole
demoenstrates the presence of multiple thick (>1mj) coal seams within the Upper Carboniferous,
Westphalian. A NCB depth structure map confirms the regional structure of the Coal Measures
as dipping gently to the south east toward the Cheshire basin.

it 15 the intention of the partnership to confirm the CBM production potential of each licence by
drilling a well inte each PEDL from an onshore surface location, contingent upon achieving the
required planning permission. ldentification of potential well sites is angoing, including in
canjunction with the arrangements with Peel Environmental Ltd.
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Parkside

Overview
Busingess review

This area is located in South Lancashire to the south east of the old Parkside Colliery area of the
South Lancashire coalfields and north west of Warrington. The area was awarded to a
partnership of Nexen and |Gas as part of the 13th round of onshore ficences announced by the
Secretary of Slate on 28 May 2008.

Geographically, the licence is on the southern margin of the Rossendale antidine and on the
western margin of the Pennine Axis, and targets the CBM potential of the southern extension
of the South Lancashire coalfield which is proven, by prior NCB boreholes, to extend for at least
5 kilometres to the south east.

The oldest rocks present in the area belong to the upper part of the Millstone Grit Series of
Upper Carboniferous age and are followed conformably by the Lower and Middle Coal
Measures. These geclogic strata consist of alternating shales, sandstones and coal seams. The
northern and western area of the licence includes part of the underground workings of the
abandoned Scuth Lancashire coalfield. The workings demonstrate the presence of multiple
thick (>1m) coal seams within the Upper Carboniferous, Westphalian, Pennine coal measures.
Exploration waork carried out by the former NCB confirms the regicnal structure of the coal
measures as gently dipping to the south (2t depths up to and exceeding 1,200 metres) and
being broken up by a series of normal faults. -

Itis the intention of the partnership to confirm the CBM production potential of the licence by
drilling a wel! into the application area from an onshore surface location, contingent upon
achieving the required planning permission. ldentification of potential well sites is ongoing.
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Key financial highlights

Qverview

Business review

Income statement
£000 2008 2007
Revenue 992 gn
Operating loss (as8)  (2,029)
Loss for the year (386}  (2.015F

* Includes Exceptional item - impairment of Goodwil on Reverse of (£2,040) thousand. Refer to note 7 in the consolidated
financial statements.

Total licence expenditure

Cumulative to end (£000} 2008 2007
Incurred by Group a76 109
Carried by Nexen 4,072 2,664

Cash position

= The Group manages its cash and other sources of finance, including its agreements with
Nexen, 50 as 10 have access to adequate funds to meet the costs of future exploration and
development programmes. At 31 December 2008, the Group's capital employed amounted
to £2.6 million (2007: £1 million) all provided by equity, as the Group has no borrowings.

«  Asat 31 December 2008 the Group had a consolidated cash position of £2.3 milion
(2007 £1.4 million}. In addition the Group has committed income of £500,000 for 2009 as
a result of a management servicas agreement with Nexen. The Group also has access to
carry agreements with Nexen under which, as at 31 December 2008, a further £1.7 million
(2007: £3.1 million) of the Group’s share of the cost of future licence work programmes
{which have 10 be approved by the Group) will be carried by Nexen.

« Accordingly, at 31 December 2008, in total, the Group had access to in excess of
£4.5 million (2007: £4.0 million) of funding.
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Overview
Business review

Principal risks and uncertainties

+ The Group is exposed, through its operations, to liquidity risk, which is managed by the
Board who regularly review the Group's cash forecasts and the adequacy of available
fadilities to meet the Group’s cash requirements. At the Group's current stage of
development, the Board does not consider foreign currency and credit risks to be material.

« The Group is exposed to market price risk through variations in the wholesale prices of gas
and electridty in the context of its future production volumes. Currently the Group has not
entered into any forward contracts to fix the prices of these commodities. The Board wil
continue %o monitor the benefit of entering into such contracts.

« The Group is exposed to risks associated with geological uncertainty. No guarantee can be
given that gas can be produced from any or all of the Group’s assets or that gas can be
delivered economically.

+ The Group is exposed to planning, environmenta, licensing and other permitting risks
assodated with its operations and, in particular, with drilling and production operations.
To date, authorities have appeared supportive but there can be no guarantee this
will continue.

¢ The Group is exposed 10 capital risk resulting from its capital structure. Currently the Group
has no borrowings and is solely equity funded. However, the capital structure is continually
monitored to ensure it is in line with the business needs and ongoing asset development.
Further details of the Group's capital management policy are disclosed in note 17 to the
consclidated financial statements.

= The Group is also exposed to a variety of other risks including those related to:
~ operational matters (including cost increases, availability of equipment and successful

project execution),
- Nexen operating agreements (induding their pursuit of projects);
— competition;
—~  key personne; and
— litigation.

Environment, Health and Safety

The Group is committed to preserving the environment and to ensuring we provide safe
and healthy work conditions for all our employees and contractors. Nexen, which operates
all of our assets, has Environmental and Health and Safety policies that can be found at
WIWW.NEXENINC.COM.
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Directors

QOverview
Directors

Francis Gugen

Executive Chairman

Frands is a founder, largest shareholder and Executive Chairman and has over thirty year's ol
and gas industry experience. Between 1982 and 2000 he helped grow Amerada Hess in north
west Europe, ultimately becoming CEQ. He is @ member of the CBI's Economic Affairs
Committee. Francis is also a past president of the UK Offshore Operatars Assodation, past chair
of the industries representation on the UK Government Oil & Gas Task Force (Pilot) and the chair
of the CBI's Environrental Affairs Committee.

Frands is a chartered accountant having worked for Arthur Andersen for eight years until 1982,
principally as an oll and gas spedalist. Currenly he is Chairman of the board of Petroleun
Geophysical Services ASA and is a non-executive director and member of the audit committee
of the Britannia Building Society. Until 2006 he served as non-executive director of North Sea
gas fields and pipelines operator CH4 Energy Limited before it was acquired in 2006 by Venture
Petroleum Plc for Euro 224 million, Francis is also the non-executive chair of Chrysaor Limited,
focused on developing North Sea oil and gas fields and of Fraudscreen Limited, a finandial
services business.

Francis devotes such time 1o the Group as is required to discharge his duties.

Andrew Austin

Chief Executive Officer

Andrew is one of the founders and the Chief Executive Officer and previously he specialised in
energy projects in the gas, electricity and renewables sector. Andrew has been an Executive
Director since 2004 and now has full time responsibility for day to day operations and
business development.

Andrew has been involved in ventures as principal and has also rased substantial funds of
private and public equity for clients during the course of his career to date. Andrew spent 17
years working in investment banking in the City of London with Merrill Lynch, Nemura, Citibank
and Barclays Capital. Latterly he was general manager of Creditanstalt lnvestment Bank in
tondon. He also has six years of management and consultancy experience with clean tech
companies including Generics Group and Whitfield Salar,

Brent Cheshire

Executive Technical Director

Brent is one of the founders and is the Technical Director, Afier 14 years at Shell, he joined
Amerada Hess in 1991, where he had a range of roles culminating in Senior VP E&P Worldwide
Technology and CEQ Scandinavia, Brent has significant experience in geology, driling
technology and project rmanagement and is managing director of DONG E&P {UK) Limited,
under arrangements that allow him to devote appropriate time to 1Gas.

He was responsible for Amerada's entry into Denmark through identifying the patential of the
undrilled Sauth Ame prospect, managing its acquisition and developing its production. Brent is
a petroleum engineer having graduated as a geologist from Durham University. Since leaving
Amerada, he has been a senior adviser to the Danish Oil and Natural Gas Company, assisting it
with the design and implementation of its growth strategy.
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John Bryant

Senior independent Non-Executive Director

Johnis chairman of Gas Turbine Efficiency plc and is a non-executive director of Weaiherly plc.
These are both quoted on AIM. He is also a board member of the Attiki Gas Company, which
supplies natural gas to Athens and the surrounding districts.

John previously served as president of Cinergy Global Resources Corp, respensible for all
international business and global renewable power operations of this US-based eleciricity and
gas utility provider. Before joining Cinergy, John was executive director with Midlands Electricity
plc. He has been involved in developing a number of large gas fired power stations both in the
UK and overseas, together with both electricity and gas distribution in Europe and Africa,
renewable power in Europe and North America and gas and electricity trading. His prior
experience was at British Sugar plc, Drexel Limited, the British Oxygen Company and Unilever
plc. Drexel, where he was president, was a global ofl and gas equipment manufacturing and
servidng company.

John is a Fellow of the Institute of Directors and a Fellow of the Royal Sodety of Arts.

Richard Armstrong

Non-Executive Director

Richard is an associate with Fiske plc, the AV quoted stockbrokers. He is a former equity analyst

with extensive experience in reconstructing and raising capital for turnaround situations espedially
in the quoted micracap sector. He is currently a Director of AIM quoted Bella Media plc and PLUS
quoted Petrocapitat Resources plc.

Peter Redmond

Non-Executive Director

Peter has over 20 years' experience In corporate finance and venture capital. After leaving
Durlacher Limited in 2003, he joined Merchant House Group plc and is now chief executive
officer of its corporate finance subsidiary, Merchant Capital Limited. He has been active in
reconstructing a number of AIM companies as investing companies in recent years induding
Optimisa plc, and Artilium plg; and each of these have since acquired or established operating
businesses. Peter is a director of AlM quoted Bella Media plc.
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Corporate governance

The Board of Directors support high standards of corporate governance and the guidance set out in the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
{the "Combined Code”). As a Company that is quoted on AlM, it is not required to comply with the Combined Code but all the Directors intend 1o
comply with its main provisions as far as is practicable having regard to the size and composition of the Group.

The Board and its committees
The Board of the Company consists of three Executive Directors and three Non-Executive Directors; with the latter all being considered to be
independent. The Senior independent Non-Executive Director is John Bryant and biographies of all the Directors are induded on pages 12 and 13.

The Board retains full and effective control over the Group. The Board meets regularly at least eight times a year to consider reports on the
operational and finandial performance of the Group and to decide on matters reserved unto itself, which include formulating, reviewing and
approving the Group's strategy, budgets, major items of capital expenditure and senior personnel appointments.

The Chairman of the Board, who is executive, has a second casting vote in the event of deadlock at Board Meetings; solong as the three Executive
Directors collectively hold shares representing more than 75% of the outstanding voting rights comprised of the issued Ordinary Share capital.

The Directors have established separate committees each chaired by a Non-Executive Director as follows:

Audit committee
The committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors; being chaired by Richard Armstrong and having as other members: John Bryant and Peter
Redmond. The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer may attend only at the invitation of the committee.

The committee receives and reviews reports from management and the Group's auditors relating to the Group’s annual report and accounts and
from rmanagement relating to interim results announcerments. The committee focuses particularly on compliance with legal reguirements,
accounting standards and the AIM Rules and on ensuring that effective systems of internal finandial and non-financial controls Gncluding for the
management of risk and whistle-blowing) are maintained. However, the ultimate responsibility for reviewing and approving the annual report and
accounts remains with the Board of Directors, The cormmittes is also responsible for making recommendations to the Beard of Directors on the
appaintment of the external auditors and their remuneration. The committee keeps under review the external auditors' independence and
considers the nature, scope, and results of the auditor's werk and develaps policy on and reviews {reserving the right to approve} any non-audit
services that are provided by the externat auditors.

The committee normally meets at least three times a year and meets the external auditors at least annually without the presence of the
Executive Directors.

Remuneration committee

The Commitiee comprises anly Non-Executive Directors; being chaired by John Bryanit and having as other members Richard Armstrong and Peter
Redmond. The committee, which normally meets at least twice a year, has responsibility for making recommendations to the Board of Directors on
the Company's policy on the remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors and other senior executives (as is delegaled to the committee to
consider) and for determining, within agreed terms of reference, specific remuneration packages for each of them, induding pension rights, any
compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes. In accordance with the committee’s terms of reference, no
Director may participate in discussions relating to their own terms and conditions of service or remuneration.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee is chaired by the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, fohn Bryant, and its other members are the Non-Executive
Director, Richard Armstrong, and the Chairman, Francis Gugen. The committee, which meets as required throughout the year, has responsibility for
considering the size, structure and cormposition of the Board of Directors, retirements and appointments of additionat and replacerment Directors
and making appropriate recommendations to the Board af Directors. The committee is also tasked with ensuring that plans are in place for orderty
succession to the Board of Directors and senior management positions, so as to maintain an appropriate balance of skills and experience within the
Group and the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company will be invited to attend meetings of the committee when the
committee is discussing matters related to executive management and such other matters as the committee chairman deems appropriate.

At each Annual General Meeting at least one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by ratation. The Directors to retire by rotation shall
include, firstly, any Director who wishes to retire at the meeting and not offer himself for re-election and, seccndly, those Directors who have been
longest in office since their last appointment or reappointrment, provided abways that each Director shall be required to retire and offer himself for
re-election at least every three years, Directors appointed by the Board hold office only unitil the dissolution of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company next following such appointment.

Internal control

The Board acknowtedges that it is responsible for establishing and maintaining the Group's system of internal controls and reviewing its
effectiveness, The procedures that include, inter alia, financial, operational and compliance matiers and risk management are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaternent or loss, The Board
has considered the need for a separate internal audit function but, bearing in mind the present size and compasition of the Group, does not
consider it necessary at the current time,

Retations with shareholders

Cormmunications with shareholders are considered importanit by the Directors. The primary contact with shareholders, investors and analysts is the
Chief Executive Officer. The other Executive Directors, however, regularly speak to investors and analysts during the year. Company circulars and press
releases have also been issued throughout the year in relation to various proposals and for keeping investors informed about the Group's progress.

The Company also maintains a website on the internet (wwaw.igasplc.com) that is regularly updated and contains a wide range of information about
the Group.
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Directors’ remuneration report

This report explains how decisions regarding Directors’ pay are taken.

Remit of the Remuneration committee

The Committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors; being chaired by John Bryant and having as cther members Richard Armstrong and
Peter Redmond. The committee, which normally meets at least twice a year, has responsibility for making recommendations to the Board of
Directors on the Company’s policy on the remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors and other senior executives (as is delegated to the
committee to consider) and for determining, within agreed terms of reference, specific remuneration packages for each of them, inchding
pension rights, any compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes. In accordance with the committee’s terms
of reference, no Director may participate in discussions relating to their own terms and conditions of service or remuneration.

Nature of remuneration
The Remuneration committee considers the fallowing as potential elerments of reward:

Annual Salary.

Annual Bonus,

Long-Term Incentive.

Other Benetits, including Pension.

These elements are considered in aggregate when assessing competitiveness against the market.

Current arrangements

As explained elsewhere in this Annual Repert, the Company was the subject of a reverse take over on 31 December 2007 (the “Reverse”),

whereby the Company became the legal parent of Island Gas Limited {“IGL"} and IGL's three Directors becamne the Executive Directors of the

Company and together the holders of over 84% of the Company's issued share capital. Following an additional placing of shares as outlined in

Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, 1Gas’ three Executive Directors now own 81% of the Company's issued share capital. .

As part of the Reverse the Company chose to take over the employment arrangements that had applied to the three Executive Directors, except
that their contracts of employment, which are evergreen, were extended from one month to twelve months' notice; as deemed appropriate for
an AIM listed company. Under these arrangerments, the three Executive Directors currently have no Long-Term Incentive Plan and are not
entitled to any other Benefits, including Pension, and received Annual Safary and Annual Bonuses, all earned as Directors, as follows:

2008 Salary 2007+
Salary Bonus Total and fees Banus Total
Executive Directors £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
F Gugen - Chairman 100 - 100 100 - 100
A Austin — Chief Executive Officer 200 75 275 200 40 240
B Cheshire — Technical Director 100 20 120 100 - 100
Total — Executive Diractors 400 95 495 400 40 440

* All earned as Directors of IGL
Each of the Executive Directors devotes such time as is required to discharge his duties, which in the case of Andrew Austin is full time.

Each Executive Director is entitled to receive a bonus dependent on the achievement of various objective targets and milestones as set by the
Remuneration Committee.

Non-Executive Directors are paid solely by fees and do not receive any salary, pension, benefits or bonuses. Aggregate information relating to
Directors emoluments is provided in Note 6 in the Consolidated Finandial Statements.

John Bryant
Chairman Remuneration Committee
11 June 2009
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report together with the Group and Parent Company finandal statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Business review and future developments
A review of the business and the future developments of the Group are presented in the Chairman’s statement on pages 4 and 5 and in the
Group's Business review on pages 6 to 11.

Results and dividends
The Group's loss for the year after taxation was £386 thousand (2007: loss £2,015 thousand). The Directors do not recommend the payment of

a dividend for the year,

Going Concern

Adter reviewing the Group's budgets and cash flow projections for 2009 and 2010 and taking into consideration the current operating
enwironment, the risks outlined in Note 17 to the consolidated financial staternents and the Group's liquidity risk managerment as set out under
Cash position in the Business review on page 10, the Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources o continue in business for
the foreseeable future. It is therefore appropriate 10 adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Principal activity

The Group's principal area of activity is coal bed methane (“CBM"), intended to result in the production and marketing of methane gas for
industriat and domestic use from virgin coal seams within its UK acreage. This requires acreage to be explored, apprased and developed and in
connection with which the Group also provides technical and other related services details of which are outlined in Note 3 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of changes to share capital in the period are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated finandial statements.

Directors and their interests
The Directors who served throughout the year were as follows:

F R Gugen Executive Chairman
AP Austin Chief Executive Officer
B Cheshire Technical Director
JBryant Non-Executive

R J Armstrong Non-Executive

P Redmond Non-Executive

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company at 31 December 2008 were as follows:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007 31 December 31 December

Ordinary 50p Shares Ordinary 50p Shares 2008 2007

Number % Number % Warrants Warrants'

F R Gugen 27,419,097 4399 27,419,097 46.39 - -
AP Austin 1,429,253 18.34 11,429,253 19.34 - -
B Cheshire 11,429,253 18.34 11,429,253 19.34 - -
J Bryant 50,370 0.08 50,370 0.09 110,000 110,000
R J Armstrong 58,460 G.09 20,000 003 110,000 110,000
P Redmond 50,770 0.08 20,000 003 110,000 110,600

* Of the warrants issued to each Non-Executive Director, 82,500 are exercisable into Ordinary S0p Shares a1 a price of $5p per Ordinary Share and 27,500 are exercisable at a price of 75p
per Ordinary Share.

Rotation and re-election of Directors
In accordance with the Articles of Association Andrew Austin and Peter Redmond retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves
for re-election,

Directors’ insurance and indemnity provisions

Subject 1o the conditions set out in the Companies Act 1985, the Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers Insurance to
indemnify the directors and officers against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties. Such provision remains in farce at the
date of this report,

The Company indemnifies the Directors against actions they undertake or fail to undertake as Directors or officers of any Group company, to
the extent permissible for such indemnities to meet the test of a qualifying third party indemnity provision as provided for by the Companies Act
1985 and 2006. The nature and extent of the indernnities is as described in Section 60 of the Company's Articles of Assodation as adopted on
27 December 2007. These prowvisions rernained in force throughout the year and remain in place at the date of this report,
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Substantial shareholders
Apart from the Directors’ holdings, the only other helding in excess of 3% of the share capital of the Company at the date of this reportwas
R Smith who held 2,564,100 (2007: 2,564,100} shares representing 4.1% (2007; 4.3%) of the Ordinary Shares in issue,

Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash balances and other debtors and creditors that arise through the normal course of
business as set out in Notes 12 to 15 1o the consolidated finandial staternents. The Group's financial risk management objectives are set outin
Note 17 to the financial statements and the Business review on page 10.

Employment policy

1t is the policy of the Group to operate a fair employment policy. No employee or job applicant is less favourably treated than another on the
grounds of their sex, sexual orientation, age, marital status, refigion, race, nationality, ethnic or naticnal origin, colour or disability and all
appointrments and promotions are determined solely on merit. The Directors encourage employees to be aware of all issues affecting the Group
and place considerable emphasis on employees sharing in its success.

Creditor payment policy and practice

It is the Group's normal practice to agree payment terms with its suppliers and abide by such terms. Payment becomes due when it can be
confirmed that goods and/or services have been provided in accordance with the relevant contractual conditions. The amount owed by the
Company to trade creditors at the end of the finandial year represented 22 days of daily purchases for the Company (2007: 4 days).

Charitable and political contributions
During the year, the Group made no donations, (2007: nil)

Status
The Company is not a close company as defined in the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988.

The Company is domidiled in the UK and incorporated and registered in England.

Board committees
Information on the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination committees is included in the Corporate Governance section of the annual report on
page 14.

Auditors
A resolution 1o reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting at a fee to be agreed in due course by
the Audit Committee and the Board.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to the auditors

So far as each person whe was a Director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit informaticn, being information
needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its report, of which the auditor is unaware. Having made enguiries of fetlow Directors, each
Director has taken all the steps that a Director might reasanably be expected io have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit infarmation and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on 10 July 2009 as stated in the Notice of Meeting which accompanies this Annual Repart.

By order of the Board
Mofo Secretaries Limited

Secretary
11 June 2009
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Consolidated financial statements —
Directors’ statement of responsibilities in respect thereof

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Group finandal statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and those International Financial Reperting Standards as adopted by the European Unicn (“IFRSs™).

The Directors are required 1o prepare Group financial staternenis for each finandal year which present fairly the financial position of the Group
and the finandial performance and cash flows of the Group far that period. In preparing those Group financial statements the Directors are
required {0:

»  select suitable accounting polidies in accordance with IAS B: Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then
apply them consistently;

»  present information, including accounting polides, in a manner that provides relevant, refiable, comparable and understandable information;

» provide additional disdosures when compliance with the specific requirernents in [FRSS is insuffident to enable users to understand the
irnpact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financia! position and financial performance; and

+ state that the Group has complied with IFRSs, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and to enable them to ensure that the finandal statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are alsa responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other imegularities.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Island Gas Resources plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of lsland Gas Resources plc for the year ended 31 December 2008 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, and the related Notes 1 o 22. These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent comparty financial staterments of sland Gas Resources plc for the year ended 31 December 2008.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Qur audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and requlatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that
specific information presented in the Chairman’s Statement and the Business Review that is cross referred from the Business Review and Future
Developments section of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Group financial statements.
The other information comprises only the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review, the Corporate Governance Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the Directors’ Report. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Group financial statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend to any cther information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Group finandial statements, It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evatuated the overalt adequacy of the presentation of infermation in the
group financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

e the Group finandial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its loss for the year then ended;

¢ the Group finandial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

e the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the group financial statements.

Ernst & Young4d.P
Registerad Auditors
London

11 June 2009
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007

Notes £000 £000

Revenue 3 992 8N
Cost of sales (826} {726)

Gross profit 166 85
Administrative expenses (624} (69)
Exceptional item ~ Impairment of goodwill on Reverse 7 - {2,040)
Operating loss 4 (458) (2,024)

Finance income 8 72 16
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (386) {2,008}
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 2 - ()
Loss for the year (386) {2,015)
Basic and diluted (loss} per share (£/share) 10 (0.0064) (0360)
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets n 476 109
Property plant and equipment - -
476 109
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 666 283
Cash and cash equivalents 13 2,278 1,414
2,944 1,697
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 (843) (751)
Current taxation liabilities 14 - ()
(843) (752)
Net current assets 2,101 945
Total assets less current liabilities 2,577 1,054
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 - {78)
Net assets 2,577 976
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 18 4,275 2,664
Preference shares - -
Share premium account 20 420 44
Share warrant reserve 19 167 167
Retained earnings{accurmulated deficit) 20 (2,285) (1,899)
Shareholders’ funds 2,577 976

These financial staternents were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 11 June 2009 and re signed on its behalf by:

/%/z [,

Francis Gugen Andrew Austin
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Retained
Called up Share Share earnings/
share capital Praference premium warrant  {accumulated
{Note 18) Shares agcount reserve deficit) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2007 1 44 44 - 116 205
Changes in equity for 2007
Loss for the year - - - - (2,015} (2,015)
Reverse and scheme of arrangement 2,663 (44) - - - 2,619
Share based payments - - - 167 - 167
Balance at 31 December 2007 2,664 - a4 167 (1,899) 976
Changes in equity for 2008
Loss for the year - - - - (386) (386)
Issue of shares during year 1,61 - 484 - - 2,095
Share issue costs - - {108) - - {108)
Balance at 31 December 2008 4,275 - 420 167 (2,285} 2,577
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007

Notes £000 £000
Operating activities:
Loss for the year (386) {2,015)
Impairment of goodwill on Reverse 7 - 2.040
Finance income 8 (72) (16)
{Increase) in trade and other receivables (383) (170}
Increase in trade and other payables 92 106
{Decrease) in current taxation liabilities (1} (8)
{Decreaselincrease in non—current liabilities (78} 78
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (828) 5
Investing activities
Acquisition of exploration and evaluation assets " (367) (95)
Interest received 72 16
Net cash used in investing activities (295) 79
Financing activities
Cash acquired on Reverse 2z - 1,305
Redemption of preference shares - 84)
Cash proceeds from Issue of Ordinary Share Capital 18 2,095 -
Share Issue Costs (108) -
Net cash from financing activities 1,987 1,261
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 864 1,187
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1414 227
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,278 1,414
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Consolidated financial statements — notes
As at 31 December 2008

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated finandal statements of Island Gas Resources plc (the “Company”) and subsidiaries {the “Group™) have been prepared under
the historical cast convention in accordance with nterational Financial Reporting Standards, adopted for use by the European Union ("IFRSs")
as they apply to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008, and with the Companies Act 1985 and 2006 where relevant. The accounts
were approved by the board en 11 June 2009, Island Gas Resources plc is a public limited cormpany incorporated and registered in England
and Wales.

The Group financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 or later periods but which the Group has not adopted eary. Those that may be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

Effective date

international Accounting Standards (IAS/IFRSs)

IFRS 2 Amendment to IFRS 2 — Viesting Conditions and Canceflations — This clarifies that only service 1 January 2009
conditions and performance conditions are vesting conditions and other features of a share-based
payment is not vesting conditions. In addition, it specifies that all cancellations, whether by the
entity or by other parties, should receive the same accounting treatment. The Group has
considered the effect of this interpretation and has conduded that there is no impact on the
finandial statements

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised January 2008) — This introduces a number of changes in the 1 July 2009
accounting for business combinations accurring after this date and will impact the amount of
goodwill recognised, the reported resulls in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future
reported results. IAS 27R requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without
loss of control} is accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer
give rise to goodwill, nor will they give rise to gain or loss. Furthermare, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by partially-ownied subsidiaries as well as the loss of
control of a subsidiary, Other consequential amendments were made to IAS 7 “Staterment of
Cash Flows”, 1AS 12 “Income Taxes”, IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”
|AS 28 “Investment in Associates” and |1AS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”, The changes to IFRS 3R
and 1AS 27R will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions with minorigy
interests. Management does not currently expect this standard to have any impact onits
financial statements,

IFRS 8 Operating Segments — This standard introduces the “management approach” to segment 1 January 2009
reporting. [FRS 8, which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2003 finandial information, will
require the disclosure of segment infarmation based on the internal reporis regularly reviewed by
the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to assess each segment’s performance and to
allocate resources to them. The Group currently only has one business segment, and so the
adoption of this standard will not have any effecs on the financial performance or position of the
Group but may to give rise to additional disclosures.

IFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Finandal Instruments — The amendments require enhanced disclosures 1 January 2009
about fair value measurements and liquidity risk. Management does not currently expect this
standard to have any impact on its financial statements.

IAS 1 Presentation of Finangial Staterments (revised September 2007)- The Standard separates owner 1 January 2009
and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity will indude only details of
transactions with owners, with non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
the Standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items of recognised
income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. Management
does not currently expect this standard to have any impact on its finandial statements,

185 23 Borrowing Costs {revised March 2007) ~ 1AS 23 (Revised) has removed the option of immediately 1 January 2009
recognising as an expense borrowing costs that relate to assets that take a substantial period of
time 1o get ready for use or sale. An entity is, therefore, required to capitalise borrowing costs as
part of the cost of such assets. The revised standard applies to borrowing costs relating to
qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January
2009, This is currently not refevant to the Group as it has no borrowing arrangements.
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1 Accounting policies continued
Efective date

International Accounting Standards (1AS/IFRSs) continued

IFRS 1 and Consolidated and Separate Finandal Statements (revised January 2008} - The amendments to IFRS 1 July 2009
[AS 27 1 allows an entity 1o determine the cost of investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or

assodates in its opening IFRS financial statemenis in accordance with 1AS 27 or using 2 deemed

cost. The amendment to 1AS requires all dividends from subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or

assodate to be recognised in the income statement. Management does not currently expect this

standard io have any impact on its financial staternents.

1AS 39 Efigible Hedged Items — The amendment addresses the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged 1 July 2009
itern, and the designation of inflation as 2 hedged risk or portion in particular situations. It darifies
that an entity is permitted 1o designate a pertion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability of
a financial instrument as a hedged itern, Thisis not relevant to the Group's operations as it currenty
has no such arrangements.

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners - IFRIC 17 dlarifies that a dividend payable should be 1 July 2009
recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the
entity. It also clarifies that an entity should measure the dividend payable at the fair value of the net
assets to be distributed and that an entity should recognise the difference between the dividend
paid and the carrying amount of the net assets distributed in profit or loss. This is not currently
relevant to the Groups operations.

IFRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate ~ The interpretation is to be applied retrospeciively. 1 January 2009
It darifies when and how revenue and related expenses from ihe sale of a real state unit should be
recognised if an agreement between a developer and buyer is reached before the construction of
the real estate is completed. Furthermore, the interpretation provides guidance on how to
determine whether an agreement is within the scope of IAS 11 or 1AS 18. IFRIC 15 will not have an
impact on the consolidated finandal staiement because the Group does not conduct such activity.

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the Group’s finandial
statements in the period of initial application. Furthermore, the Group does not anticipate adopting these standards and interpretations ahead
of their effective date.

(b) Going concern

Alfter reviewing the Group’s budgets and cash flow projections for 2009 and 2010, and taking into consideration the current operating
environment, the risks outlined in Note 17 and the Group's liquidity risk management as set out under Cash position in the Business review on
page 10, the Directors are satisfied that the Group has adeguate resources 10 continue in business for the foreseeable future. It is therefore
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financal statements.

{c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the results of Island Gas Resources plc and its subsidiaries as if they formed a single entity. The
financia! stalements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies to
the parent. All intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies, induding unrealised profits arising frorm them, are
eliminated in full.

On 31 December 2007 the Company completed a reverse takeover whereby a private company, island Gas Limited (“IGL"}, became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company but with IGL's shareholders acquiring 94% of the Ordinary Share capital of the combined entity (the

"Reverse”); these arrangements, being more fully desaibed in an admission document dated 27 November 2007 (the "Admission Document”).

As a result of the Reverse and in accordance with IFRS and the provisions of the Companies Act 1985 the Group’s results up to the date of the
Reverse become those of IGL and the comparative financial information is thereiore that of IGL. At 31 December 2008 the Group comprised
the Company and its subsidiaries IGL and KP Renewables (Operations) Limited.

(d} Reverse acquisitions

A business combination where the cormpany rmaking the acquisition ends up under the control of the shareholders of the company being
acquired is considered to be a reverse takeover, In the event of a reverse takeover, consolidated finandial statements following the takeover are
prepared based primarily on the financial statements of the company being acquired {the acquiree); essentially as if it was in fact the acquiree
making the acquisition.

(e} Joint ventures

The Group's licence interests are all held jointly with others under arrangements whereby unincorporaied and jointly controlled joint ventures
are used to explore, evaluate and ultimately develop and produce from its gas interests, Accordingly, the Group accounts for its share of assets,
lizbilities, income and expenditure ¢f these jointly controlled assets, dassified in the appropriate Balance Sheet and Income Statement headings,
except where its share of such amounts remain the responsibility of another party in accordance with the terms of the carried interests as
described at (i) below.
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Consolidated financial statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2008

1 Accounting policies continued

(A Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The Group invests in the exploration, evaluation, development and production of gas from the UK, The assessment of the production rates to
be derived from such expenditure is a matser of judgement, as is the forecasting of the future economic benefit that may be derived from such
production. Finally, the period of time over which the economit benefit associated with the expenditure incurred will arise is also a matter of
judgement. These judgements affect the carrying value of non-cumrent assets and impairment calculations related to such assets.

Estimates and assumptions;
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

+  Carrying value of intangible exploration and evaluation assets:

The Group has capitalised intangible exploration and evaluation assets in accordance with IFRS 6, which are evaluated for impairment as
described at (i) below. Any impairment reviews, where required, involve significant judgement related to matters such as recoverable
reserves; production profiles; gas and electricity prices; development, operating and off-take costs; nature of land access agreernents ang
planning permissions; application of taxes; and other matters. Where the final outcome or revised estimates related to such matters differ
from the estimates used in any earlier impairment reviews, the results of such differences, to the extent that they actually afiect any
impairment provisions, are accounted for when such revisions are made. Detatls of the Groups Intangible exploration and evaluation assets
are disclosed in note 11.

(g} Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those not considered to be part of the normal operation of the business. Such items are identified as exceptional and a full
explanation is given in the notes to the financial statements.

(h) Revenue

Revenue comprises the invoiced value of goods and services supplied by the Group, net of value added tax and trade discounts. Revenue is
recognised in the case of gas sales when goods are delivered and title has passed and in the case of services rendered only once a legally
binding contract is in place. Amounts billed for services where the contract provides for their delivery over a period of time are recognised eventy
over the relevant period; amounts due for all other services are recognised as the services are provided.

(i) Non-current assets {(intangible exploration and evaluation assets and property plant and equipment}

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

The Groug accounts for exploration and evaluation costs in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources” as follows:

* Exploration and evaluation assets are carried at cost less any impairment and are not deprediated or amortised.

» Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets comprise those related to acquisition of rights to explore; topographical,
geclogical, geochemical and geophysical studies; exploratery drilling (including coring and sampling); activities in relation to evaluating the
technical feasibifity and commercial viability of extracting gas {induding appraisal drilling and production 1ests); any land rights acquired for
the sole purpose of effecting these activities.

»  Expenditures not recognised as exploration and evaluation assets include those related to development and production costs and any costs
incurred prior to obtaining the legal rights 1o explore an area; these latter costs are expensed immediately to the Income Statement.

» Tangible assets acquired for use in exploration and evaluation activities are dassified as property, plant and equipment, interests in oil and
gas properties. However, 10 the extent that such tangible assets are consumed in developing an intangible exploration and evaluation asset,
the amount reflecting that consumption is recarded as part of exploration and evaluation asset Costs.

» Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are initiafly accumulated and capitalised by reference to appropriate
geographic areas {cash generation units or CGU), which may not be larger than a business segment, currently the entirety of the Group’s
UK gas business.

»  Expenditure recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are transferred to property plant and equipment, interests in oil and gas
properties when technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting gas is demonstrable. Explaration and evaluation assets are
assessed for impairment {on the basis described betow), and any impairment loss recognised, before reclassification.

»  Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment whenever facts and drcumstances suggest that they
may be impaired, which indudes when a licence is approaching the end of its term and is not expected to be renewed; there are no
substantive plans for continued exploration or evaluation of an area; the Group deddes to abandon an area; whilst development is likely to
proceed in an area there are indications that the exploration and evaluation asset costs are unlikely to be recovered in full either by
development or through sale,

» Net proceeds from any disposal of exploration and evaluation assets are initially credited against previously capitalised costs, with any surplus
proceeds being credited to the consolidated Income Statement.

Property plant and equipment, interests in cil and gas properties
Property plant and equipment, interests in oil and gas properties are those assets which have been assessed for economic recoverability and are
accounted for as follows:

« Expenditure relating to evaluated properties is depleted on a unit-of-production basis, commencing at the start of commercial production.
The depletion charge is calculated according to the proportion that production bears to the recoverable reserves for each property.
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1 Accounting policies continued

» The Group's property plant and equipment, interests in il and gas properties are assessed for indications of impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indiicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable, when impairment is computed on the basis as
set out below. Any impairment in value is charged to the Income Staternent as additional depredation.

+  Net proceeds from any disposal of development/producing assets are compared to the previously capitalised costs for the relevant asset or
group of assets. A gain or loss on disposal of a development/producing asset is recognised in the Income Staternent to the extent that the
net proceeds exceed or are less than the appropriate portion of the net capitalised costs of the asset or group of assets.

Impairment

Impairment reviews, when required as desaribed above, are camied out on the following basis.

= By comparing the sum of any amounts carried as exploration and evaluation assets and as property plant and equipment, interests in oil and
gas properties as compared to the recoverable amount.

= The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The Graup generally refies on fair value less
cost to sell assessed either by reference to comparable market transactions between a willing buyer and a willing seller or on the same basis
as used by willing buyers and sellers in the oil industry. When assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

*  Where there has been a charge for impairment in an earlier period that charge will be reversed in a later period where there has been a
change in drcumstances to the extent that the recoverable amount is higher than the net book value at the time. In reversing impairment
losses, the carrying amount of the asset will be increased to the lower of its original carrying value or the carrying value that would have
been determined {net of depletion) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods.

Decommissioning

Where a liability for the removal of production facilities or site restoration exists, a provision for decommissioning is recognised. The amount
recognised is discounted 1o its present value and is reflected in the Group’s non-current liabilities. A corresponding asset is incduded in the
Group's property plant and equipment, interest in oil and gas properties. The asset is depleted in accordance with the Group's policy

on depletion.

Carried interests

Where the Group has entered into carried interest agreements, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements where expenditure
incurred under such agreements is not refundable. Where expenditure is refundable, out of what would but for the carry agreements have been
the Company's share of production, the Company records amounts as non-curvent assets, with a corresponding offset in current liabilities or
nan-current liabilities, as appropriate, but only once it is apparent that i is more likely than not that future produciion will be adequate to result
in a refund under the terms of any carry agreement; when the Group records refunds only to the extent that they are expected to be repayable.

Non oil and gas related property plant and equipment

Other property plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the
cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual values, over their estimated useful lives at the following rates, with any impairment being
accounted for as additional depreciation:

Computer equipment - over three years on a straight line basis
Furniture and fixtures — ower five years on a straight line basis
Leasehold property improvements — over the period of the lease

{ Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term deposits at variable interest rates with
maturity periods of up to three months. Any interest earned is accrued monthly and dassified as interest income within finance income.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value when related amounts are invoiced, then carried at this amount less any allowances for
doubtful debts or provision made for impairment of these receivables.

Trade and other payables
These financia! liabilities are all non interest bearing and are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideraticn received.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant finandal difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will nat be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the
invoice. The carrying amount of receivables is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.
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As at 31 December 2008

1 Accounting policies continued
(k) Operating leases
Rentals are charged to the Income Statement on a straight fine basis over the period of the lease.

{l) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of cuent tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered or paid to the
tax authorities. Taxable (fossy¥profit differs frem the (lossyprofit before taxation as reported in the Income Staternent because it excudes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further exdludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date. Temporary
differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they
are indluded in the financial statements, Deferred tax liabilities are not discounted. Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it is
regarded as more likety than not that they will be recovered.

{m) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded to employees (induding Directors), the fair value of the aptions or warrants at the date of the
grant is recarded in equity over the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored in to the fair value of the options or warrants granted. As
long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, the amount recorded is computed irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are
satisfied. The cumulative amount recognised is not adjusted for the failure to achieve a market vesting condition; although equity no longer
required for options or warrants may be transferred to another equity reserve.

Where the terms and conditions of options or warrants are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, is also recorded in equity over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, the amount recognised in equity is the fair value of goods and
services received.

Charges correspanding to the amounts recognised in equity zre accounted as a cost against the profit and toss which will usually be to the
Consolidated Income Staterment unless the services rendered {and discharged by share based payments} relate to an issuance of equity or qualify
for capitalisation as a non-current asset, [n the case of an issuance of equity, the charge is 1o the same equity reserve as cash costs related to
such an issuance would be charged. Costs may be capitalised within non-current assets in the event of services being rendered in connection
with an acquisition or intangible exploration and evaluation assets or property plant and equipment.

{n) Equity
Equity instruments issued by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, and allocated between called
up share capital and share premium accounts as appropriate,

However, as required by IFRS 3, the effect on the Group's Equity of the Reverse is to extinguish al! previcusly recorded amounits and to record
instead amounts equal to the deemed costs of the Reverse, being the adjusted market value of the Company as last quoted immediately prior to
the announcerment of the Reverse, plus the Equity of JGL; the effective acquiring company. See Note 2 for further information on the Reverse.
Also retained within Group Equity is the cost of outstanding warrants issued by the Company and surviving the Reverse.

2 Business combination
On 31 December 2007 the Company completed a reverse 1akeover whereby a private company, lsland Gas Limited ("IGL"), became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company but with IGUs shareholders acquiring 94% of the Ordinary Share capitat of the cornbined entity (the “Reverse”).

IGL is a private company operating in England and Wales, whose principal activity is Coal Bed Methane (“CBM*),
As a result of the Reverse, and in accordance with IFRS, the cost of the business combination and the fair value of the assets acquired are those
of the Company {the entity which is deemed to have been acquired} at the date of acquisition, with IGL being the deemed acquirer whose

assets and liabilities have not been remeasured.

Immediately prior to the Reverse, the Company held £1,305 thousand of ¢ash and cash equivatents, which was acquired by the Group at the
date of the Reverse and has been induded as a finance item for the purposes of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement.
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2 Business combination continued
The book and fair values of the Company's net assets at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Fair value

Book value to Group

£000 £000

Trade and other receivables 79 79

Cash and cash equivalents 1,305 1,305
Trade and other payables (594) (594

Net assets 790 790

Goodwill arising on Reverse, written off ( Note 7) 2,040

2,830

Discharged by:

Fair value of equity of Company issued on Reverse 2,664

Fair value of warrants of Company taken over 166

2,830

From the date of the Reverse to 31 December 2007, the contribution of the Company (the entity which is deemed to have been acquired) 10 the
loss of the Group was £2,040 thousand; representing the impairment of goodwill on Reverse, as explained in Note 7.

ff the combination had taken place at the beginning of 2007, the results of the Group would have been unchanged from those as reported,
except for £33 thousand being the effect of interest income earned on cash acquired net of the costs of the Reverse. Accordingly, the retained
loss for the year would have been £1,982 thousand and the revenue from continuing aperations of £811 thousand.

3 Revenue and segment information

All revenue which represented turnover arose within the United Kingdom and is attributable to activities in the CBM sector. The Group did not
sell any CBM gas prior to 31 December 2008, and revenue for 2008 and 2007 related 1o the supply of CBM services and expertise under
managernent service contracts. The Group's activities are all retated to CBM and so the Group only has one business segment as its primary
reporting segment.

4 Operating loss

2008 2007
£000 £000
Operating profit is stated after charging:
Auditor's remuneration:
Charged to Consolidated Income Statement:
Audit of the financial statements* 25 -
Other fees paid 1o Ernst & Young LLP - Audits of subsidiaries 13 22
Other fees paid to Ernst & Young LLP - Relating 10 taxation 5 -
Not charged to Consolidated Income Statement:
Audit of the financial statements — Ernst & Young LLP* - 20

*Audit fees relating to the audit of the 2007 annual financial staternents have not been charged to the Consclidated Incame Statement due to the use of reverse acquisition accounting
principles, such fees having been charged to the Company's income statement prior 1o the Reverse.

S Employee information

2008 2007
£000 £000
Staff costs comprised:
Wages and salaries 495 440
Sodal Security Costs 63 54
558 484
No. No.
Average number of employees in the period:
Services 2
Administrative 1
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Consolidated finandal statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2008

6 Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the Directors for the year, exduding that charged through reserves, was as follows.

2008 2007
£000 £000
Directors’ emaluments and benefits comprised:
Directors’ emoluments 495 440
Sodal Security Costs 63 54
Pension contributions - -
558 494
The highest paid Director received emolurnents and benefits as follows:
Emoluments 275 240
Sodial Security Costs 35 30
Pension contributions - -
310 270

A proportion of the Group's directors remuneration costs have been capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

Charged through reserves:
Directors’ emoluments and benefits comprised:

Amounts payable in respect of qualifying services - 56
Share based payments - 131
- 187

The highest paid Director received ernaluments and benefits as follows:
Emoluments - 55
Pension contributions = -

Non-Executive Directors are paid solely fees and do not receive any salary, pension, benefits or boriuses. in 2008 Non-Executive fees were
£53 thousand (2007; £60 thousand of which £56 thousand was charged through reserves as noted belaw).

Directors' emoluments, other than those charged through reserves, in 2007 were those of the Directors of IGL, who were also Directors of the
Company at 31 December 2007, for services rendered as Directors of IGL during the year; which fall due to be charged to the Consolidated
Incorne Staternent under reverse acquisition accounting principles (See Note 1 above).

Directors’ eroluments not charged to the Consolidated Incorme Statement in 2007 were those paid to the Directors of the Company prior to
the Reverse, P Redmand, a Directar prior 1o the Reverse, is also a director of Merchant Capital Limited, which received payments from the
Company as set out in Note 21.

Directors’ warrants
At 31 Decernber 2008 the Directors held warrants over the Ordinary Shares of 50p each of the Company as follows; for which they paid £nil
and all of which were granted on 27 December 2007:

2007  Exercise price Exerdisable 2008
Number {p#share) atany time up o Number
R Armstrong 82,500 55 31 December 2010 82,500
27,500 75 31 December 2010 27,500
JBryant 82,500 55 31 December 2010 82,500
27,500 75 31 December 2010 27,500
P Redmond 82,500 55 31 December 2010 82,500
27,500 75 31 December 2010 27,500
The share price at 31 December 2008 was 37.5p (2007: 72.5p)

7 Exceptional item - impairment of goodwill on reverse
2008 2007
£000 £000
Impairment of goodwdll on Reverse - 2,040

As a result of the Reverse as outlined in the basis of consolidation in note 1{c), the Group recognised goodwill on acquisition of £2,040 thousand
related to the Company, which had no cash generating units at acquisition, and which was considered not to relate to any of IGL's cash
generating units, and so has been impaired in full.
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8 Finance income

2008 2007
£000 £000
Interest receivatle comprised;
Bank interest 72 16
Bank interest represents the total interest income far finandal assets not at falr val ue through profit andloss.
9 Tax on loss on ordinary activities
2008 2007
£000 £000
UK corporation tax;
Current tax on income for the year - 7
Total UK taxation - 7
Tax on loss on ordinary activities - 7

Factors affecting the tax charge

The tax assessed for the year does not reflect a credit equivalent to the loss on ordlinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation
tax in the United Kingdom of 21% (2007; 20%), for small companies. From 1 April 2008 the Group's rate of corporation tax on profits increased
from 20% to 21% as a result of changes enacted in the finance Act 2007, The Group has used an adjusted rate of 20.75% for the year ended
31 December 2008 (2007: 19.75%) to reflect this change. A reconciliation of the UK small companies statutory corporaticn tax rate applicable
to the Group's profit before tax to the Group's total tax charge is as follows:

2008 2007
£000 £000
(Loss) on ordinary activities before tax (386) {2,008)
(Loss) on ordinary activities muttiplied by the standard rate of corperation tax
in the UX for small companies of 20.75% (2D07: 19.75%) (81} (397)
Tax effect of Exceptional item — Goodwill on Reverse written off - 403
Tax effect of expenses neot allowable for tax purposes 1 ~
Costs related to Petrofiferous Trade not triggered - 1
Net increase in unrecognised losses carried forward 80 -
Tax on loss on ordinary activities - 7

Information regarding the Group’s tax losses is presented in Note 15,

10 (Loss) per share (EPS)}
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to the erdinaryequity holders of the parent by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares that would be issued on the conversion of
all the dilutive potential Crdinary Shares into Ordinary Shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted ezrnings per share computations:

2008 2007
Basic EPS — Ordinary Shares of 50p each {£) (0.0064) (0360)
Diluted EPS - Ordinary Shares of 50p each (£) (0.00864) {0360}
{Loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent — £000 {(386) {2,015)
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year — basic EPS 60,780,044 55,554,289
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year — diluted EPS 60,780,044 55,594,289

There are 525,280 potentially dilutive warrants and options over the Qrdinary Sha res at 31 December 2008 (2007: 525, 280), which are not
induded in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive for the year as their conversion to Ordinary Shares would
decrease the loss per share.

There have been no other transactions involving Ordinary Shares or potential Crdi nary Shares between the reporting date and the date of
completion of these finandial statements,
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11 Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

2008 2007
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 109 14
Additions 367 95
At 31 December 476 109
Amortisation
At 1 January - -
Charge for the year, induding impairmenit - -
At 31 December - -
Net book amount
At 31 Decernber 476 109
At 1 January 109 14

Under certain agreements which the Group has in place with Nexen (the “Nexen Carry Agreements”), Nexen will provide 100% of the funding
required for work programmes up to a gross spend of £26.5 million. The repayment to Nexen of any amounts carried under these
arrangements is dependent, on a licence by licence basis, on successiul operations yielding sufficient production to support repayment in
accordance with terms of the Nexen Carry Agreements.

At 31 December 2008 £4,072 thousand had been carried (2007: £2,664 thousand), which has not been recorded as either non-current assets
or liabilities, since repayment is currently sufficiently uncertain.

12 Trade and other receivables

2008 2007
£000 £000
VAT recoverable 126 78
Trade debtors 504 173
Prepaymenits 36 32
666 283

The carrying value of each of the Group's financial assets as stated above is considered to be a reascnable approximation of its fair value,

All of the Group's finandal assets as stated above are from debiors of good credit standing and have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment and no impairment provision was found to be required (2007: £nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of assets listed in the table above.
The trade debtor balance reported above is from one customer which represents a concentration of credit risk.

Of the Group's financial assets as stated above £127 thousand (2007: £208 thousand) were past due but not impaired at the reporting date, of
which the ageing was:

2008 2007
£000 £000
Not more than three months 35 44
Mare than three months but not more than six months 77 161
More than six months but not more than one year 15 3
127 208

13 Cash and cash equivalents
2008 2007
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 2,278 1,44
2,278 1,414

The carrying vatue of the Group's cash and cash equivalents as stated above is considered to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value,

The Group only deposits cash surpluses with major banks that have acceptable credit ratings of "AA” or better.
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14 Current liabilities

2008 2007
£000 £000

Trade and other payables:
Trade creditors 244 401
Taxation and social security 62 39
Deferred revenue 210 —
Accruals and other creditors 327 31
843 751
Corporation tax _ 7
843 752

The carrying value of each of the Group's financial liabilities as stated above is considered to be a reasonable approximation of its fair value, All
creditors are payable within one month and no creditors have been outstanding for longer than three months (2007 — £602 thousand within
one month, £75 thousand between one and three months and £75 thousand between three and six months).

Information regarding the Group’s tax losses is presented in Note 15.

15 Non-current liabilities

2008 2007
£000 £000
Trade and other payables, due 31 March 2009 - 73
- 78
Tax losses, none of which is considered suifidently certain of utilisation to set up deferred tax assets, amount {o:
2008 2007
£000 £000
Company:
Excess management expenses 2,998 2,618
IGL:
Petroliferous — Trading loss 17 7
Petroliferous — Minerals extraction allowances 548 161
KP Renewables {Operations) Limited (“KPRO"):
Trading loss 1,200 1,194

The availability of Petrcliferous amounts to ofiset future profits is dependent on IGL commencing a Petroliferous Trade (as defined for tax
purposes), which itself is dependent on the award of a CBM Field Developrment Plan. KPROY's losses may only be offset against future profits of
KPRO, if any.

16 Commitments
The Group had no lease or capital commitments at 31 December 2008 {2007 £nil).

As at 31 December 2008, no amounts have been included for exploration and appraisal as these are expected to be covered by the Nexen
Carry Agreements as referred to in Note 11 above (2007: £nil).

17 Financial instruments
The Group's finandal instruments prindpally comprise cash at bank, and various items such as trade debtors and creditors that arise directly
from operations. The main purpose of these finandal instruments is to provide finance for the Group’s operations,

Financial assets and liabilities
The Group's policy is to ensure that adequate cash is available and the Group does not trade in finandal instruments and has not entered into
any derivative transactions.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises fromn the Group’s management of working capital and is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet iis finandal
obligations as they fall due. Cash forecasts and plans are updated frequently and reviewed regularly by managemeni and the Board. The Groups
liquidity requirements have been met principally through the Nexen Camry Agreernents and internal cash resources. The Group has no long-term
borrowings, and based on current projections the Group has sufficient funds to meet current obligations as they fall due.
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17 Financial instruments continued
Interest rate risk profile of financial assets
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates related to the published rate of the bank.

Creditrisk
Cash and treasury credit risks are mitigated through the exdusive use of institutions that carry published grade “AA” or better aredit ratings so
as to minimise counterparty risk.

Capital management

The Group considers its capital to comprise its Ordinary Share capital and share premium. in managing its capital, the Group's primary objective
is 1o ensure its continued ability 1o provide a return to equity shareholders, principally through capital growth. The Group currently has no
borrowings, and information regarding the Group’s management of capital is provided in the Business Review under Cash position on page 10.

18 Share capital

Ordinary Shares Deferred shares
£000 £000
No. Nominal value* No.  Nominal value”
Authorised
1 January 2007, Ordinary Shares of 1p each 100,000,000 1.000
10 April 2007 corwersion of each issued Crdinary Share of 1p each into: (46,589,662) {466)
New Ordinary Shares of .05p 46,589,662 23
New deferred shares of .95p each 46,589,662 443
10 April 2007 consolidation of each new QOrdinary Share of .05p into: (46,589,662)
Ordinary Shares of 1p each — 20 for | 2,329,483
10 April 2007 additional Qrdinary Shares created 500,000,000 5,000
27 December 2007 consolidation of each 1p Ordinary Share into: (555,739,821)
New Ordinary Shares of 50p ~ 50 for 1 11,114,796
27 December 2007 new Ordinary Shares created 78,000,000 39,000
31 Decemnber 2007 and 2008 89,114,796 44,557 46,589,662 443
Ordinary Shares Deferred shares
£000 £000
No.  Nominal value* No.  Nominal value*
Issued and fully paid
1 January 2007, Ordinary Shares of 1p each 46,589,662 466
10 April share conversion of each Ordinary Share of 1p each into; (46,589,662} (466)
New Ordinary Shares of .05p 46,588,662 24
New deferred shares of .95p each 46,589,662 443
10 April 2007 consalidation of each new Ordinary Share of .05p into: (46,589,662}
Ordinary Shares of 1p each — 20 for 1 2,329,483
10 April shares issued for cash 75,000,000 750
10 April shares issued in lieu of fees 6,500,000 65
7 November shares allotted to former creditors 832,127 3
27 December consolidation of each 1p Ordinary Share into 84,661,610
New Ordinary Shares of 50p — 50 for 1 1,693,232
27 Decernber 2007 deierred shares repurchased (46,589,662) (443)
31 December shares issued to redeem loan notes 1,636,363 818
31 December shares issued for acquisition of IGL 55,555,365 27,778
31 Decemnber shares issued in fieu of fees 222,222 m
31 December 2007, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 59,107,182 29,554* - -
25 June 2008 shares issued for cash 3,222,460 1,61
31 December 2008, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 62,329,642 31,165 - -
£000
Share capital account*
At 1 January 2007 1
Market Capitalisation of the Company on the last day of trading prior to announcement of the Reverse:
Shares in issue 1,354
Loan Notes converting mandatorily on Reverse 1,309
Adjusted value 2,663
At 31 December 2007 2,664
Shares issued dunng the year 1,611
At 31 December 2008 4,275

* I atcordance with the accounting for a reverse take-over (as per Note 1{n)) nominal values do not appear in the Group balance sheet since all previously recorded amounts are
extinguished and instead there are retorded in share capital account amounts equal to the deemed cost of the Reverse, being the adjusted market value of the Company as last quoted
immediately prior to the announcement of the Reverse, plus the Equity of IGL; the effective acquiring company.
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18 Share capital continued

The following share transactions took place since 1 January 2007, pursuant 1o the CVA and related arrangements made on 10 April 2007
{all as explained in more detail in a circular to shareholders dated 16 March 2007 and in an Admission Document issued to shareholders
on 27 Novernber 2007} and the Reverse take-over and related arangements as of 27 December 2007 (all as explained in more detail in
an Admission Document issued 1o sharehclders on 27 November 2007):

* 10 April 2007 — Each issued Ordinary 1p Share was subdivided into one deferred .55p share and one new Ordinary .05p Share;

+ 10 Apnl 2007 - Each new Ordinary .05p Share was consolidated on a 1 to 20 basis into a new consolidated Ordinary 1p Share;

* 10 April 2007 - The authorised share capital of the Company was increased by £5 million 10 £6 million through the creation of 500
million Crdinary 1p Shares;

* 10 April 2007 - The Board allotted 75 million Ordinary 1p Shares pursuant to a fund raising;

* 10 April 2007 - The Board allotted 6.5 million Ordinary 1p Shares as consideration for senvices provided to the Company in the
aggregate total amount of £65,000 payable for fees;

* 10 April 2007 - The Company granted warrants t¢ acquire up to 4,191,474 Ordinary Shares at a price of 1p each. Following the

Reverse these have been rebased as rights to acquire 83,830 at a price of 50p each;

¢ 2 November 2007 —  The Company issued £300,00C of Loan Notes at par value;

e 7 November 2007 — The Company allotted 832,127 Ordinary 1p Shares to former creditors pursuant to the CVA;

= 27 December 2007 — Each existing Ordinary 1p Share was consolidated on a 1 for 50 basis into one share of 50p;

s 27 December 2007 - The authorised share capital of the Company was increased by £39 million o £45 million through the creation of 78
milion new Qrdinary 50p Shares;

= 27 December 2007 - The Company repurchased all the issued deferred shares for an aggregate amount of 1p;

e 27 December 2007 — The Company issued 440,000 warrants 1o three Directors and one former Birector of the Company;

* 31 December 2007 — The Company issued 1,636,363 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 55p each to redeem the Loan Motes;

« 31 Decernber 2007 — The Company issued 55,555,365 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 90p each to the shareholders of IGL in

consideration for the acquisition of their shares.

« 31 December 2007 — The Company issued 222,222 Ordinary 50p Shares as consideration for services provided (0 the Company in the
aggregate total amount of £200,000 payable for fees; and

s 25)une 2008 - The Company issued 3,222,460 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 85p each.

19 Share warrant reserve
The Company has made equity settled share based paymenis, all valued using Black-Scholes, as follows:

2008 2007
£000 £000

Directars:
Balance 1 January 167 -
Charge for the year - -
In respect of serving Directors at year end, as per Note 6 - 110
In respect of Directors resigning during the year - 21
167 131
In respect of Professional advisers - 36
Balance 31 December 167 167

All warrants vested on grant and accordingly the key assumptions made in arriving at the Black—Scholes valuations were: share price on date of
grant, adjusted for subsequent consolidations where appropriate and the length of time for which the warrants wilt remain exercisable, A
long-term risk free interest rate of 5% and an implied volatility of 20% were used in valuing the warrants at the time of granting. It was also
assumed that no dividends would be paid during the life of the warranis.

Maovements in the Share warrant reserve during the period were as follows :

2008 2007
weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exergse
price price
Ne {pence) No {pence)
At 1 January 523,830 58 1,450,000 1
Granted in Period - - 4191474 1
Rebased on Reverse - -~ (5117,044) -
Qutstanding at 31 December 523,830 58 523,830 58
Exercisable at 31 December 523,830 58 523,830 58

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the equity settled share options outstanding as at 31 December 2008 is 21 months (2007:
33 manths) with the maximum remaining term of options granted being 24 months (2007: 36 manths). The range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the end of the year was 50p to 75p (2007 50p to 75p). In 2007, the Company received services from certain professional
advisers in exchange for the Company’s shares. A share-based payment was recognised with respect io the fair value of the services received.
Details of share options granted to Directors are disclosed in note 6.
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Consolidated financial statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2008

20 Otherreserves

«  Share Premium reserve — The share premium account of the Group artses from the capital that the Company raises upon issuing shares that
are in excess of the nominal value of the shares net of the costs of issuing the new shares, During the year the Compary issued 3,222,460
Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 65p each. The cost of the issue was £108 thousand resulting in a movement in the Share Premium reserve
of £376 thousand

*  Retained Earnings — This represents the historic accumulated losses less profits made by the Group accounted for under reverse accounting
as explained in Note 1(n).

21 Related party transactions
Key management personnel
There are no key management personnel other than Directors of the Cormpany; details of whose remuneration is set out in Note 6.

Arising in 2007
P Redmond, as well as being a Director of the Company is also a director of Merchant Capital Limited (*MCL”), a wholy-owned subsidiary of
Merchant House Group plc, with which group the Company had the following transactions during the year.

= The Company entered into an engagement letter with Merchant Capital plc (“MCP") on 1 February 2007, whereby MCP recaived £128
thousand for corporate finance services in relation te the reconstruction and refinancing of the Company on 10 April 2007, of which a total
of £50 thousand was taken in Ordinary Shares at the then refinancing price and there was a grant of warrants; being to acquire up to
83,830 Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of 50p per share exercisable up to 10 April 2009,

*» This agreement was amended on 30 April 2007 pursuant to which MCP was engaged to provide additional services for a manthly retainer
of £2 thousand for one full day per week. This retainer was terminated on 13 September 2007,

« The Company entered into an engagement letter with MCP on 3 November 2007 under which MCP agreed to act as adviser to the
Company in respect of the Reverse in consideration for the issue of £100 thousand in value of Ordinary Shares at 90p per share.

As a result of the above arrangements at 31 Decerber 2008 and 2007, MCL held 211,111 Ordinary Shares and the warrants to acquire 83,830
Ordinary Shares as described above.

22 Subsequent events

= 0On 1% January the Company received approval of a field development plan (“FOP*) for Doe Green, which FDP also covers most of the area
of PEDL 145. The approvai of the FDP alsa triggers the commencement of a petroliferous trade for UK corporation tax purposes and
accordingly the Group's petroliferous trade losses become available to relieve future petroliferous trade taxable profits. Losses carried
forward at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as set out in Note 15, which will now be supplemented by a small time value of money
allowance which becomes avaitable upon the triggering of a petroliferous trade.

»  On 22 May 2009, the Group generated first electricity from gas production at Doe Green in PEDL 145. Under the terms of the Nexen Carry
Agreements cumulative production and costs related to PEDL 145 will be monitored to determine if there will be a future reguirement to
repay to Nexen ary amounts incurred in the devetopment and operation of PEDL 145. The Group wiltin 2008, on the basis of continuing
production experience and further developments plans for PEDL 145, determine if it has become more fikely than not that any amounts will
be due to Nexen.
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Parent Company financial statements —
Directors’ statement of responsibilities in respect thereof

The Directors are respensible for preparing the Annual Report and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRSs™).

The Directors are required to prepare the Parent Company financial staternents for each finandial year which present fairly the finandial position
of the Parent Company and its financial performance and cash flows for that period. In preparing the Parent Company financial statements the
Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies in accordance with 1AS 8: Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then
apply them consistently;

» present information, induding accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

* provide additional disclosures when compliance with the spedific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Parent Company's finandial position and financial performance; and

» state that the Parent Company has complied with IFRSs, subject to any material departures disdosed and explained in the
finandial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disdose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Parent Company and to enable them 1¢ ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Island Gas Resources plc

We have audited the Parent Company financial statements of Island Gas Resources ple for the year ended 31 Decernber 2008 which comprise
the Parent Company Balance Sheet, the Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Parent Company Cash Flow Statement and Notes
1 to 12. These Parent Company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reporied separately on the Group finandial statements of island gas Resources plc for the year ended 31 December 2008.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985, Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Arnual Report and the Parent Company finandal statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and International Finandal Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of
Directors' Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand).

We report to you our opinion as o whether the Parent Company financia! statements give a true and fair view and whether the Parent
Company financial staterents have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Parent Company finandal statements. The information given in the
Directors’ Report indudes that specific information presented in the Chairman’s Staternent and the Business Review that is cross referred from
the Business Review and Future Developments section of the Directors' Report.

In acidition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is
ot disdosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Parent Company financial
statemenis. The other information comprises only the Chairman's Statement, the Business Review, the Corporate Governance Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Directors' Report, We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstaternents or material inconsistencies with the Parent Company finandal statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any

other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit indudes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant 1o the amounts and disclosures in the Parent Company financial statements. h
also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Parent Company
financial statements, and of whether the accounting polidies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to abtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Parent Corpany financial statemnents are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the Parent Company financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

*» the Parent Company financial staternents give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2008;

» the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

» theinformation given in the directors’ report is consistent with the Parent Company financial staternents.

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered Auditors
London

H June 2009
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Parent financial statements
Farent company balance sheet

2008 2007
Noles £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 2 50,512 50,512
50,512 50,512
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 3 364 81
Cash and cash equivalents 4 2,210 1,305
2,574 1,386
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 5 {252) (516)
(252) {516)
Net current assets 2,322 870
Total assets less current liabilities 52,834 51,382
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6 - {78)
Net assets 52,834 51,304
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 31,165 29,554
Merger reserve 11 22,222 22,222
Share premium account i1 4,312 3,936
Share warrant reserve 10 167 167
{Accumulated deficit) (5.032) {4,575)
Shareholders’ funds 52,834 51,304

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 11 June 2009 and are signed on its behalf by:

Francis Gugen
Chairman

[,

Chief Executive Officer
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Parent Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Share
Share capital Share
Called up Merger premium redemption warrant  (Accumulated
share capital reserve account reserve reserve deficit) Tozal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 January 2007 466 - 3,734 - 244 (5.021) (577)
Changes in equity for 2007
Profit for the year 446 446
Issue and conversion of shares:
At time of CVA 815 815
Pre Reverse 938 ™7 1,109
At Reverse 271778 22,222 50,000
Repurchase of deferred shares {443) 443 -
Cost of issue of shares:
At time of CVA (192) (192)
Pre Reverse (G0) (o0
At Reverse 20 (353) (374
Issue of warrants:
At time of CVA 36 36
To Directors n 13
Transfer from share warrant reserve 244 (244) -
Balance at 31 December 2007 29,554 22,222 3,936 - 167 {4,575) 51,304
Changes in equity for 2008
Loss for the year 457) (457
Issue of shares 1,611 484 2,095
Share issue costs (108) (108)
Balance at 31 December 2008 31,165 22,222 4,312 - 167 (5,032) 52,834
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Parent Company cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £000 £000

Operating activities:

{Lossyprefit for the year (457) 446
Loss on disposal of subsidiary - a1
Finance income (62) (26)
{Increase} in trade and cther receivables (283) (41}
Decrease in project development costs - 13
(Deaease) in trade and other payables (264) (127}
{DecreaseVincrease in creditors due after one year (78) 78
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (1144) 384
Investing activities
Loss on dispesal of subsidiary - {40)
Interest received 62 26
Net cash from/{used in} investing activities 62 (14)
Financing activities
Value of equities issued net of share issue costs 1,987 51,435
Less: subsidiary acquired for equities 2 - (50,512)
Net cash proceeds from the issue of equities 1,987 923
Net cash from financing activities 1,987 923
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 905 1,293
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,305 i2
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,210 1,305
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Parent Company financial statements — notes
As at 31 December 2008

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Parent Company financial staternents of Island Gas Resources plc (the “Company”) have been prepared under the histarical cost convention
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, adopted for use by the European Union (“IFRSs*} as they apply 10 the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2008, and with the Companies Act 1985 and 2006 where relevant. The financial statemnents were authorised
for issue by the Board of Directars on 11 June 2009. island Gas Resources pic is a public limited company incorporated and registered in England
and Wales.

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded 10 the nearest thousand {£000} except when
otherwise indicated.

As a Consolidated Income Statement is published in this Annual Report, a separate Income Statement for the Company is not presented within
these financial statements as permitted by Section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985,

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 or later periods but which the Company has not adopted early. Those that may be
applicable to the Company are as follows:

Eifective date

International Accounting Standards (!AS/IFRSs)

IFRS 2 Amendment to IFRS 2 — Vesting Condiitions and Cancellations — This darifies that only service 1 January 2009
conditions and performance conditions are vesting conditions and other features of a share-based
payment s not vesting conditions. In addition, it specifies that all cancellations, whether by the
entity or by other parties, should receive the same accounting treatment. The Company have
considered the effect of this interpretation and have concluded that there is no impact on the
financial staternents.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised January 2008) - This introduces a number of changes in the 1 Juty 2009
accounting for business combinations occurring after this date and will impact the amount of
goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future
reported results. IAS 27R requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without
loss of control) is accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions wilt no lenger
give rise to goodwill, nor will they give rise to gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by partially-owned subsidiaries as well as the loss of
control of a subsidiary. Gther consequential amendments were made ta IAS 7 “Statement of Cash
Flows”™, IAS 12 “Income Taxes”, I1AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, 1AS 28
"Investment in Associates” and 1AS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”. The changes to IFRS 3R
and IAS 27R will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions with minority
interests. Management does not currently expect this standard to have any impact on its
financial statements.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments — This standard introduces the “management approach” to segment 1 January 2009
reporting. IFRS 8, which becomes mandatery for the Group's 2009 financial information, wil
require the disclosure of segment information based on the intemal reports regularly reviewed by
the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to assess each segment’s performance and to
allocate resources to them. The Company currently only has one business segment, and so the
adoption of this standard will not have any effect on the finandat performance or position of the
Company but may 1o give rise to additional disclosures.

IFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial instruments — The amendments require enhanced disdlosures 1 January 2009
about fair value measurements and liquidity risk. Management does not currently expect this
standard to have any impact on its financial statements.

AS 1 Presentation of finandial Statements (revised September 2007) ~ The Standard separates owner 1 January 2009
and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity will indude only details of
transactions with owners, with non-owner changes in equity presented as a single fine. In addition,
the Standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items of recognised
income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. Managerment
does not currently expect this standard 1o have any impact on its finandiat statements,

1AS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised March 2007} — 1AS 23 (Revised) has removed the option of immediately 1 January 2009
recognising as an expense barrowing costs that relate to assets that take a substantial period of
time to get ready for use or sale. An entity is, therefore, required to capitalise borrowing costs as
part of the cost of such assets. The revised standard applies to borrowing costs refating 1o
qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January
2009, This is currently not relevant to the Company as it has no borrowing arrangements.
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1 Accounting policies continued
Effective date

International Accounting Standards {IAS/IFRSs} continued

IFRS 1 and Consofidated and Separate financial Statements (revised January 2008) — The amendments to IFRS 1 July 2009
IAS 27 1 allows an entity to determine the cost of investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or

assodiates in its opening IFRSs financial staternents in accordance with 1AS 27 or using a deemed

cost. The amendment 1o IAS requires all dividends fram subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or

assodiate to be recognised in the income statement. Management does not currently expect this

standard to have any impact on its financial statements.

1AS 39 Eligible Hedged fterns — The amendment addresses the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged 1 July 2009
itern, and the designation of inflation as a hedged risk or portion in particular situations. It clarifies
that an entity is permitted to designate a portion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability of
a finandial instrument as a hedged item. This is not relevant to the Company's operations as it
currently has no such arrangements.

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC}

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners - IFRIC 17 darifies that a dividend payable should be 1 July 2009
recagnised when the dividend is appropriately authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the
entity. It also clarifies that an entity should measure the dividend payable at the fair value of the net
assets to be distributed and that an entity should recognise the difference between the dividend
paid and the carrying amount of the net assets distributed in profit or loss. This is not currently
relevant 1o the Company's operations,

IFRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate — The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively. 1 January 2009
It clarifies when and how revenue and related expenses from the sale of a real state unit should be
recognised if an agreement between a developer and buyer is reached before the construction of
the real estate is completed, Furthermore, the interpretation provides guidance on how to
determine whether an agreement is within the scope of IAS 11 or IAS 18. IFRIC 15 will not have an
impact on the financial statement because the Company does not conduct such activity.

The Directors do not antidpate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements in the period of initial application. Furthermore, the Company does not anticipate adopting these standards and interpretations
ahead of their effective date.

{b) Going concern

After making enquiries, and reviewing budget and cash flow projections for 2009 and 2010, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. It is therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

{c) Acquisition in 2007 of the Company's principal subsidiary

On 31 December 2007 the Company was the subject of a reverse takeover whereby a private company, ksland Gas Limited (“IGL"), became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company but with IGLs shareholders acquiring 94% of the Qrdinary Share capital of the combined entity {the
“Reverse"); these arrangements, being more fully described in an admission document dated 27 November 2007 (the “Admission Document ).
In accordance with IFRSs the Company has accounied for the acquisition at cost, being the fair value of the shares issued, with the difference
between their nominal value and fair value being accounted for as a Merger reserve, as permitied under the Companies Act 1985,

(d} Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

The principal activity of the Company’s major subsidiary, IGL, which has been accounted for at fair value at acquisition less provision for
impairment, is Coal Bed Methane ("CBM"). The testing of the Company’s investment in subsidiary for impairment involves the assessment of
IGL's CBM business, induding IGL's production rates which are a matter of judgement, as is the forecasting of the future economic benefit that
may be derived from such production. Finally, the period of time over which the economic benefit associated with the investment in subsidiary
might arise is also a matter of judgement. These judgements affect the carrying value of non-cumment assets and impairment calculations related
to such assets.

Estimates and assumptions:
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilites within the next financial year are discussed below:

» Carrying value of investment in subsidiaries:
The Company evaluates investments in subsidiaries, that have been accounted for at fair value at acquisition less provision for impairment as
described at (e) below. Any impairment reviews, where required, involve significant judgement related {0 matters such as recoverable
reserves; production profiles; gas and electricity prices; development, operating and offtake costs; nature of land access agreements and
planning permissions, application of taxes; and other matters, Where the final outcome or revised estimates related to such matters differ
from the estimates used in any earlier impairment reviews, the results of such differences, to the exient that they actually affect any
impairment provisions, are accounted for when such revisions are made.
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Parent company financial statements — notes continued
As at 31 December 2008

1 Accounting policies continued

(e} Non-current assets (investments in subsidiaries)

Invesiments in subsidiaries

Investments held as non-current assets are held at cost less provision for impainment unless the investments were acquired in exchange for the
issue or part issue of shares in the Company, when they are initially recorded in the Company's balance sheet at the fair value of the shares
issued together with the fair value of any consideration paid, including costs of acquisition less any provision for impairment which may
subsequently be required.

The Company's investments held as non-current assets are assessed for indications of impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable, when impairment is calculated on the basis as set out below. Any
impairment in value is charged to the Income Statement as additional depreciation.

Impairment
Impairment reviews, when required as described above, are carried out on the following basis:

+ By comparing any amounts carried as investments held as non-current assets with the recoverable amount.

«  The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The Company generally relies on fair value
tess cost to sell assessed either by reference to comparable market transactions between a willing buyer and a willing seller or on the same
basis as used by willing buyers and sellers in the ail industry. When assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmentts of the time value of money and the risks spedific to
the asset or cash-generating unit.

Where there has been a charge for impairment in an earlier period that charge will be reversed in a later period where there has been a change
in circumnstances to the extent that the recoverable amount is higher than the net book value at the time. In reversing impairment losses, the
carrying amount of the asset will be increased to the lower of its original carrying value or the carrying value that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods.

(f) Finandial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term deposits at variable interest rates with
criginal maturity pericds of up to three months, Any interest earned is accrued monthly and classified as interest income within finance income.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value when related amounts are invoiced, less any allowances for doubtful debts or provision
made for impairment of these receivables.

Trade and other payables
These finandal fiabilities are all non interest bearing and are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received.

impairment of financial assets

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment s made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insoivency or
significant financial difficutties of the debtor} that the Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the
invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

{g) Operating leases
Rentals are charged to the Income Statement in the year on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

(h} Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the
1ax authorities. Taxable (lossyprafit differs from the {JossWprofit before taxation as reported in the Income Statement because it exdudes iterns of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further exdudes items that are never taxable or deduciible. The
Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date. Tempaorary
differences arise from the indusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they
are induded in the finandiat statements. Deferred tax liabilities are not discounted. Deferred tax assets are recagnised to the extent thatit is
regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered.
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1 Accounting policies continued

(i) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded 1o employees (incuging Directors), the fair value of the options or warrants at the date of the
grant is recorded in equity over the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected 1o vest at each balance sheet date 5o that, uttimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored in to the fair value of the options or warrants granted. As
long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, the amount recorded is computed irmespective of whether the market vesting conditions are
satisfied. The cumulative amount recognised is not adjusted for the faiture to achieve a market vesting condition; although equity no longer
required for options or warrants may be transferred 1o another equity reserve.

Where the terms and conditions of options or warrants are madified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, is also recorded in equity over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons cther than employees, the amount recognised in equity is the fair value of goods and
services received.

Charges corresponding to the amounts recognised in equity are accounted as a cost against the profit and loss which will usually be to the
parent company Income Statement unless the services rendered {and discharged by share based payments) relate to an issuance of equity or
qualify for capitalisation as a non-current asset. In the case of an issuance of equity, the charge is to the same equity reserve as cash ¢osts
related to such an issuance would be charged. Costs may be capitalised within non-current assets in the event of services being rendered in
connection with an acquisition or intangible expleration and evaluation assets or property, plant and equipment.

() Equity
Equity instruments issued by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, and allocated between called
up share capital, share premium accounts or merger reserve as appropriate.

2 Non-current assets — investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries comprises;

£000
At 1 January 2007 -
Acquisition in the year, at fair value 50,512
Disposals in the year -
At 31 December 2007 50,512
At 31 December 2008 50,512

The subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 December 2008 and 2007 which are ali 100% owned directly by the Company and are all
incorporated in England and Wales, were:

Name Principal activity
Island Gas Limited Production and marketing of Coal Bed Methane
KP Renewables (Operations) Limited Electricity Generation

3 Trade and other receivables

2008 2007
000 £000
VAT recoverable 125 57
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 225 -
Prepayments 14 24
364 31

The carrying value of each of the Company's finandal assets as stated above is considered to be a reasonable approximation of its fair value,

Amounts due from subsidiary undenakings result from services provided by and payments on behalf of $GL. Payment of amounts outstanding,
which are payable on demand, are made to meet the Company's liquidity management requirerments.

All of the Company's financial assets as stated above are from debtors of good credit standing and have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment and no impairment provision was found to be required (2007: £nil),
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As at 31 December 2008

3 Trade and other receivables continued

0Of the Company's financial assets as stated above £112 theusand (2007: £27 thousand) were past due but not impaired at the reporting date,

the ageing of which was:

2008 2007
£000 £000
Not more than three months 3s -
More than three months but not more than six months 77 27
112 27

4 Cash and cash equivalents
2008 2007
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 2,210 1,305
2.210 1,305

The carrying value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents as stated above is considered 1o be a reasonable approximation of their fair

value.
The Company only deposits cash surpluses with major banks that have acceptable published credit ratings of "AA” or better,

S Current liabilities

2008 2007
£000 £000
Trade and other payables:
Trade creditors 89 384
Taxation and social security - -
Acauals and other creditors 163 132
252 516

The carrying value of each of the Company’s financial kiabilities as stated above is considered to be a reasonable approximation of its fair value.
All creditors are payable within one month and no creditor has been outstanding for longer than three months (2007 - £366 thousand within

one month, £75 thousand between one and three months £75 thousand between three and six months),
Information regarding the Company’s tax losses is presented in Note 6.

6 Non-current liabilities

2008 2007
£000 £000
Trade creditors, due 31 March 2009 - 78
- 78

Tax losses, none of which is considered sufficiently certain of utilisation to set up deferred tax assets, amaourit to:
2008 2007
£000 £000
Trading loss - _
Excess management expenses 2,998 2,618

Excess management expenses may only be offset against future profits, if any, of the Company generated in its capacity as a Group

holding company.

7 Commitments
The Company had no lease or capital commitments at 31 December 2008 (2007: £nil).
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8 Financial instruments ]
The Company's finandal instruments principally comprise cash at bank, and various items such as trade debtors and creditors that arise directly
from operations. The main purpose of these finandal instruments is to provide finance for the Company’s operations.

Financial assets and liabilities
The Company's policy is to ensure that adequate cash is available and the Company does not trade in financial instruments and has not entered
into any derivative transactions.

Liquidity risk

Liguidiity risk arises from the Company's management of working capital and is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due, Cash forecasts and plans are updated frequently and reviewed regularly by management and the Board. The
Company's liquidity requirements have been met principally through internal cash resources. The Comparyy has no long-term borrowings, and
based on current projections the Company has sufficient funds to meet current obtigations as they fall due,

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates related to the published rate of the bank.

Credit risk
Cash and treasury credit risks are mitigated through the exdusive use of institutions that carry accepiable published grade “AA” or better credit
ratings so as to minimise counterparty risk.

Capital management

The Company considers its capital to comprise its ordinary share capital and share premium. In managing its capital, the Company’s primary
objective is to ensure its continued ability to provide a return to equity shareholders, principally through capital growth. The Company currently
has no borrowings, and information regarding the Group's management of capital is provided in the Business Review under Cash position on
page 10.

9 Share capital
Ordinary Shares Deferred shares
£000 £000
No. Nominal value No. Nominal value
Authorised
1 January 2006 and 2007, Ordinary Shares of 1p each 100,000,000 1,000
10 April 2007 conversion of each issued Qrdinary Share of 1p each into: {46,589,662) {466)
New Qrdinary Shares of .05p 46,589,662 23
New deferred shares of 85p each 46,589,662 443
10 April 2007 consolidation of each new Ordinary Share of .05p into; (46,589,662}
Ordinary Shares of 1p each - 20 for 1 2,329,483
10 April 2007 additional Ordinary Shares created 500,000,000 5,000
27 December 2007 consolidation of each 1p Ordinary Share into: (555,739,821)
New Ordinary Shares of 50p — 50 for 1 11,114,796
27 December 2007 new Crdinary Shares created 78,000,000 39,000
31 December 2007 and 2008 89,114,796 44,557 46,589,662 443
Ordinary Shares Deferred shares
000 £000
No.  Nominal value No. Nominal value
Issued and fully paid
1 January 2006 and 2007, Ordinary Shares of 1p each 46,589,662 466
10 April share conversion of each Ordinary Share of 1p each into: (46,589,662) (466)
New Qrdinary Shares of .05p 46,589,662 24
New deferred shares of .95p each 46,589,662 443
10 April 2007 consclidation of each new Ordinary Share of .05p into; {46,589,662)
Ordinary Shares of 1p each - 20 for 1 2,329,483
10 April shares issued for cash 75,000,000 750
10 April shares issued in lieu of fees 6,500,000 65
7 November shares allotted to former creditors 832127 8
27 Decernber consolidation of each 1p Ordinary Share into (84,661,610
New Ordinary Shares of 50p - 50 for 1 1,693,232
27 December 2007 deferred shares repurchased (46,589,662} (443}
31 December shares issued 1o redeem loan notes 1,636,363 818
31 December shares issued for acquisition of IGL 55,555,365 27,778
31 Decernber shares issued in lieu of fees 222,222 m
31 December 2007, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 59,107,182 29,554 - -
25 June 2008 shares issued for cash 3,222,460 1,61

31 December 2008, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 62,329,642 31,165 - -
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9 Share capital continued

The following share transactions ook place since 1 January 2007, pursuant to the CVA and related arrangernents made on 10 April 2007
{all as explained in more detail in a Circular to shareholders dated 16 March 2007 and in an Admission Docurment issued 1o shareholders
on 27 November 2007) and the Reverse take-over and related arrangements as an Admission Document issued to shareholders on

27 November 2007);

« 10 April 2007 - Each issued Ordinary 1p Share was subdivided into one deferred .95p share and one new Ordinary .05p Share;

* 10 April 2007 - Each new Crdinary .05p Share was consclidated on a 1 to 20 basis into a new consolidated Ordinary 1p Share;

* 10 April 2007 - The authorised share capital of the Company was increased by £5 million to £6 million through the creation of 500
milton Ordinary 1p Shares,

+ 10 April 2007 — The Board allotted 75 million Ordinary 1p Shares pursuant to a fund raising;

¢ 10 April 2007 — The Board allotted 6.5 million Ordinary 1p Shares as consideration for services provided 1o the Company in the
aggregate total amount of £65,000 payable for fees;

s 10 April 2007 - The Company granted warrants to acquire up 1o 4,191,474 Ordinary Shares at a price of 1p each. Following the

Reverse these have been rebased as rights to acquire 83,830 at a price of 50p each;

¢ 2 November 2007 -  The Company issued £300,000 of Loan Notes at par value;

» 7 November 2007 - The Company allotted 832,127 Ordinary 1p Shares to former creditors pursuant to the CVA;

» 27 December 2007 ~ Each existing Ordinary 1p Share was consolidated on a 1 for 50 basis into one share of 50p;

« 27 December 2007 — The authorised share capital of the Company was increased by £39 million to £45 million through the creation of 78
million new Ordinary 50p Shares;

« 27 December 2007 — The Company repurchased all the issued deferred shares for an aggregate amount of 1p;

s 27 December 2007 — The Company issued 440,000 warrants to three Directors and one former Director of the Company,

» 31 December 2007 —~ The Company issued 1,636,363 Ordinary S0p Shares at a price of 55p each to redeem the Loan Notes;

* 31 December 2007 — The Company issued 55,555,365 Qrdinary 50p Shares at a price of 90p each to the shareholders of IGL in

consideration for the acquisition of their shares;

* 31 December 2007 — The Company issued 222,222 Ordinary 50p Shares as consideration for services provided to the Company for the
aggregate total amount of £200,000 payable for fees; and

s 25 june 2008 - The Company issued 3,222,460 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 65p each.

The costs of all share issues have all been charged to either share premium account or share capital redemption reserve and are as disclosed in
the parent company statement of changes in equity.

10 Share warrant reserve
The Company has made equity settled share based payments, all valued using Black-Scholes, as follows:

2008 2007
£000 £000

Directors:
Balance 1 January 167 -
Charge for year - —
In respect of Directors serving at year end - 10
In respect of Directors Resigning during the year - 21
167 131
In respect of Professional advisers - 35
Balance 31 December 167 167

All warranits vested on grant and accordingly the key assumptions made in arriving at the Black-Scholes valuations were: share price on date of
grant, adjusted for subsequent consolidations where appropriate and the length of time for which the warrants will remain exerdisable. A
long-term risk free interest rate of 5% and an implied volatility of 20% were used in valuing the warrant at the time of granting. it was also
assumed that no dividends would be paid during the life of the warrants.

Movements in the Share warrant reserve during the period were as follows:

2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercase eXerqase
price price
No {pence) No (pence)
At 1 January 523,830 58 1,450,000 1
Granted in Period - - 4,191,474 1
Rebased on Reverse - - (517644) -
Outstanding at 31 December 523,830 58 523,830 58

Exercisable at 31 December 523,830 58 523,830 58
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10 Share warrant reserve continued

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the equity settled share options outstanding as at 31 December 2008 is 21 months {(2007:
33 months) with the maximum remaining term of options granted being 24 months, {2007: 36 months). The range of exercise prices for options
outstanding at the end of the year was 50p to 75p (2007: 50p to 75p). In 2007, the Company received services from certain professional
advisors in exchange for the Company’s shares. A share-based payment was recognised with respect to the fair value of the services received.

Directors’ warrants

At 31 December 2008 the Directors held warrants over the Ordinary Shares of 50p each of the Company as follows; for

which they paid £nil and all of which were granted on 27 December 2007:

2007  Exercise price Exercisable 2008

Number (p/share} a3t any time up 1o Number

R Armstrong 82,500 55 31 December 2010 82,500
27,500 75 31 December 2010 27500

J Bryant 82,500 55 31 December 2010 82,500
27,500 75 31 December 2010 21500

P Redmond 82,500 55 31 December 2010 82,500
27,500 75 31 December 2010 27,500

The share price at 31 December 2008 was 37.5p (2007: 72.5p)

11 Other reserves

Share Premium reserve — The share premium account of the Company arises from the capital that the Company raises upon issuing shares

that are in excess of the nominal value of the shares net of the costs of issuing the new shares. During the year the Company issued

3,222,460 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 65p each. The cost of the issue was £108 thousand resulting in a movement in the Share

Premium reserve of £376 thousand.

»  Merger reserve — The merger reserve arose as a result of the Reverse as detailed in the Accounting Policy note above and represents the

difference in the fair value and the nominal value of the shares issued. The reserve is not distributable.
* Retained Earnings — This represents the historic accumulated losses made by the Company.

12 Related party transactions
{a) With Group companies
A summary of the transactions in the year is as follows:

2008 2007
£000 £000
Subsidianies:
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiary:
Island Gas Limited :
Balance 1 January - -
Services performed by subsidiary 30) -
Net Cash advances (264) -
Services performed for subsidiary 519 -
Balance 31 December 225 -
KPR (Operations) Limited:
Balance 1 January - 1,185
Balance forgiven on Reverse - {1,195}
Balance 31 December - -
A summary of year end balances is as follows:
Amounts due from Subsidiary:
Island Gas Limited 225 -

Payment terms are as muitially agreed between the Group's companies.

(b) With Directors

Key management are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, controlling and directing the activities of the Group. In the
opinion of the Board, the Group’s key management are the Directors of the Company. Information regarding their compensation is given in

Note 6 to the consolidated accounts.

Of the total emoluments in 2008 disdosed in Note 6 1o the consolidated accounts, £39 thousand is directly related to services provided to the
Company, with the remainder relating to services pravided to Island Gas Limited. In 2007 emoluments charged to reserves in accordance
with reverse acquisition accounting related to services provided to the compary and all ather emoluments related to services provided to

Island Gas Limited.
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12 Related party transactions continued

{c) With others all arising in 2007

P Redmond, as well as being a Director of the Company, is also a director of Merchant Capital Limited {“MCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Merchant House Group plc, with which group the Company had the following transactions during the year:

= The Company entered into any engagement leiter with Merchant Capital plc ("MCP*)on 1 February 2007, whereby MCP received £128
thousand for corporate finance services in refation to the reconstruction and refinancing of the Company on 10 April 2007, of which 2 total
of £50 thousand was taken in Ordinary Shares at the then refinandng price and there was a grant of warrants over 83,830 Ordinary Shares
at an exerdse price of 50p per share exercisable up to 10 April 2009.

«  This agreement was amended on 30 April 2007 pursuant to which MCP was engaged 10 provide additional services for 2 monthly retainer
of £2 thousand for one full day per week. This retainer was terminated on 13 September 2007.

« The Company entered into an engagerment letter with MCP on 3 November 2007 under which MCP agreed to act as adviser to the
Company in respect of the Reverse in consideration for the issue of £100 thousand in value of Ordinary Shares at 90p per share.

As a result of the above arrangements at 31 December 2008 ang 2007, MCL held 211,111 Ordinary Shares and the warrants 1o acquire 83,830
Ordinary Shares as described above.
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Proposed business of the Annual General Meeting

Introduction

You will find set out at the end of this document the formal Notice of the Annual General Meeting of Island Gas Resources plc. This section
provides some additional information on the Resalutions being proposed at the Annual General Meeting. The following definitions apply
throughout this section of the document unless the context requires otherwise:

“1985 Act” the Companies Act 1985
“2006 Act” the Companies Act 2006
"Accounts” the audited finandial staternents of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008

"Annual General Meeting” or “AGM”  the annual general meeting of the Company convened for Friday 10 July 2009 pursuant to the

Notice of Annual General Meeting which appears at the end of this document

“Articles” the artides of assodiation of the Company in force at the date of this document

"Board” or “Directors” the Board of Directors of the Company

“Form of Proxy” the form of proxy accompanying this document for use at the Annual General Meeting

“QOrdinary Shares” Ordinary Shares of 50p each in the capital of the Company

“Resolutions” the resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual Generat Meeting which appears at the end of this
document

“Shareholders” holders of Crdinary Shares

“Share Plans” together the share plans constituted by the rules of () The Island Gas Resources plc 2009

Enterprise Management Incentive Share Option Scheme; and (il) The fsland Gas Resources plc
2009 Long Term Incentive Plan

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company is convened at the offices of Kreaty & Gavin Anderson and Comnpany, 85 The Strand, London,
WC2R 0DW for 10:00 am on Friday 10 July 2008, at which resolutions will be proposed:

1.

to receive and adopt the Company’s Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year ended on 31 December 2008, and the Directors'
Report and the Independent Auditors’ Repart on those accounts;

1o receive and approve the Remuneration Report of the Directors for the finandial year ended on 31 December 2008 and the Independent
Auditors’ Report on the auditable part of the Rermuneration Report;

10 reappoint as a Director Andrew Austin who, in accordance with the Articles, is required to retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment;

to reappoint as a Director Peter Redmond who, in accordance with the Artides, is required to retire by rotation at the Annual General !
Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointmens;

to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as the auditors of the Company until the next Annual General Meeting;
to authorise the Directors to determine the level of the remuneration of the auditors;

to grant the Directors authority to allot unissued shares in the capital of the Company;

1o grant the Directors the power to disapply the statutory pre-emption rights for certain shares;

to amend the Company’s Articles of Association to allow the Company to hold general meetings (other than Annual General Meetings)
on 14 days’ notice;

to amend the Company's Artides of Association to fadilitate electronic communication and website communication with, inter alia,
shareholders; and

to adopt the Share Plans.
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Proposed business of the Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolutions 1 and 2 and 5 are self explanatory. Information on the other Resolutions is provided below. Resolutions 1-7 and 11 are ordinary
resolutions which require to be passed the approval of a simple majority of Shareholders present and voting in person or by proxy or authorised
representative. On a show of hands each Shareholder so present has one vote, but should a poll be demanded eadh such shareholder has one
vate for each share held by him or her. Resolutions 8-10 are special resolutions that require to be passed the approval of 75% of such
Shareholders, determined in the same way as for the ordinary resolutions.

Resolution No 3 - reappointment of Andrew Austin as a Director

Mr Austin is liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting under the Articles, and offers himself for re-election. Having considered
his re-election, the Nomination Committee considers that his performance remains effective, particularly having regard to his responsibilities as
Chief Executive Officer,

Mr Austin is one of the founders and the Chief Executive Officer and previously he specialised in energy projects in the gas, electricity and
renewables sector. Mr Austin has been an Executive Director since 2004 and now has {ull time responsibility for day 10 day operations and
business development.

Mr Austin has been invalved in ventures as principal and has also raised substantial funds of private and public eguity for dients during the
course of Wis career to date. Mr Austin spent 17 years working in investment banking in the City of London with Merrill Lynch, Nomura, Citibank
and Barclays Capital, Latterly he was General Manager of Creditanstalt Investment Bank in London. He also has six years of management and
consultancy experience with clean tech companies including Generics Group and Whitfield Solar.

Resolution No 4 — reappointment of Peter Redmond as a Director

Mr Redmond is liable 1o retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting under the Articles, and offers himself for re-glection. Having
considered his re-election, the Nomination Committee considers that his performance remains effective, particularly having regard to his
responsibilities as Non-Executive Director.

Peter Redmond has over 20 years' experience in corporate finance and venture capital. After leaving Durlacher Limited in 2003, he joined
Merchant House Group plc and is now Chief Executive Officer of its corporate finance subsidiary, Merchant Capital Limited. He has been active
in recanstructing a number of AIM companies as investing companies in recent years induding Optimisa plc, and Arilium plc; and each of these
have since acquired or established operating businesses. Mr Redmond is a director of AIM quoted Bella Media plc.

Resolution No 7 — authority to issue shares

At the Annual General Meeting held on 7 July 2008, the Directors were authorised, in accordance with section 80 of the 1985 Act, to allot
unissued Ordinary Shares and other refevant securities up to an aggregate norminal amount of £9,851,197. This authority expires at the
condusion of this Annual General Meeting and it is therefore proposed to replace it with a new authoerity, which will allow the Directors to allot
unissued Ordinary Shares and other relevant securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £10,388,273 representing one third of the issued
Ordinary Share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2008 and a further aggregate nominal amount of £10,388,273 representing a
further third of such issued share capital, which will be available only for rights issues and other pre-emptive offerings of equity shares.

The proposal that the authority to allot new shares shall extend to a further third of the issued share capital is in accordance with the guidelines
issued by the Association of British Insurers which confine the use of this amount to rights issues only.

Assuming the passing of the resolution, the new authority will expire fifteen months from the date of the passing of the resolution or until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting, if earlier, and will revoke all previous authorities 10 the extent that they have not already been
utilised apart from other specific authorities taken in respect of outstanding warrants and options which will continue unaffected. The Directors
have no present intention of issuing any of the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company, but the passing of this Resolution will
enable the Directors to take advantage of any opportunities which may arise.

Resolution No 8 — disapplication of pre-emption rights

Section 89 of the 1985 Act contains pre-emption rights that require all equity shares which it is proposed to allot for cash to be offered to
existing shareholders in proportion to existing shareholdings, unless a special resolution is passed to disapply such rights. Such rights do not
apply to an issue otherwise than for cash, such as an issue in consideration of an acquisition. The Directors believe that these requirements are
100 restrictive and, it is proposed that the Directors should be able to allot shares amounting to no moere than an aggregate nominal amount of
£4,674,723 representing 15% of the equity share capital of the Company (induding treasury shares) at the date of the Accounts otherwise than
on a pre-emptive basis.

In addition, it is cusiomary to disapply the statutory pre-emption rights altogether, and substitute similar non-statutory provisions because, for
technical reasons, the statutory rights are difficult to apply in certain drcumstances. The proposed resolution therefore provides that all
allotmenits for cash in excess of the 15% 4mit, must be in the form of rights issues, open offers or other pre-emptive issues except for the one
third of the existing issued share capital reserved only for rights issues in accordance with the previous resolution, and fiee of the statutory
constrainis. The broadening of the proposed resolution to include pre-emptive issues other than rightts issues is a departure from the strict
wording of the ABI guidelines which is limited to rights issues, which the Directors regard as too restrictive, espedally as AIM companies
normally make open offers and not rights issues. The above departures in resolutions 7 and 8 from the strict wording of the ABI guidelines
should not be taken to indicate that they are being disregarded, but rather that the proposed resolutions are designed to provide flexibility for
the Directors to determine the form of any future pre-emptive issues in the light of market conditions and practice, at the time such an issue
may be proposed, whilst at all times complying with the one third and 15% limits set by the ABI guideiines.
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Resclution No 9 - notice period for general meetings

The Companies Act 2006 permits a public company, subject 1o its Articles, to hold all general meetings other than Annual General Meetings on
14 days’ notice, whether or not a special resolution is proposed. The Company has not yet amended its Articles in order to reduce the notice
period for a general meeting, other than an Annua! General Meeting, 10 14 days. Resolution No 9 therefore proposes an amendment to the
Articles 1o that effect, the amendment will also dispense with the concepts of ordinary and special business at annual general meetings as these
are now technically redundant under the 2006 Act.

Resolution 10 — amendment of articles of association

The Resolution, if passed, will amend the Articles 10 allow the Company to take advantage of electronic communications in giving notices 1o its
shareholders and fadilitate website communication. A separate letter is endosed with this document outlining the changes and asking
shareholders for email addresses to facilitate electronic communications. It is important to note thateven if shareholders do not respond to the
endosed letter the 2006 Act deems their consent to have been given to website communication. If shareholders elect to take up electronic
communications, sigrificant cost savings to the Company can be expected.

Resolution 11 - adoption of the Share Plans
The Board proposes the adoption of two new share plans which will be used to pravide options and awards, the Company currently having no
share plans which can be used to incentivise executive management. The terms of the new plans are described below:

(a) The Island Gas Resources plc 2009 Enterprise Management Incentive Share Option Plan (the “EMI*)

The EMI plan is 8 HMRC approved tax advantaged option plan and provides favourable tax treatment if relevant criteria are met. ltis a
discretionary plan which provides that the Company may grant options with a value at the date of grant of up to £120,00¢ to an
individual employee.

Grant of Options
Options will normally be granted within the period of 42 days cormmending on the day after any of the following:

(A} the date on which the Compary releases its half-yearly or annual results; or

(B} the date on which the plan is adopted.

Options can also be granted during the period of 14 days immediately after a person becomes an eligible person for the purposes of the plan.
If the Remuneration Committee of the Board considers that there are exceptional dircumstances, options may be granted outside these periods.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board may also require an objective perfermance condition to be satisfied before an option may be
exercised. The Remuneration Committee of the Board can waive or amend these conditions if they think they are no longer appropriate.

An option granted under the plan may not be transferred, assigned, charged or alienated other than to the eligible employee’s personal
representative on death. Any other transfer, assignment, charge, disposal or dealing with the rights and interest of the option will make the
option lapse immediately.

Limits on the issue of new shares
The plan is subject to the following limits on the overall number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued:

(&) in any 10 year period, not more than 10% of the issued Qrdinary Share capital of the Company may in aggregate be placed under option
under the plan and any other share option plan adopted by the Company; and

(B) in any 10 year period, not more than 10% of the issued Ordinary Share capital of the Company may in aggregate be placed under option
under the plan and any other exacutive share incentive plan,

in both cases taking into account the potential effect of any long-term cash bonus awards granted pursuant to the LTIP Plan or otherwise.

Exercise of Option

Normally, options may be exercised after three years and within 10 years of their initial date of grant and then to the extent only that the
performance conditions are met. If an optionholder ceases to be an employee in certain arcumstances including death, retirement, redundancy,
injury or disability, the option may be exercisable within a specified period from the date of the event causing such termination of employment
1o the extent that conditions of exercise have been satisfied, The Remuneration Committee of the Board also has discretion to allow the options
1o be exercised on cessation of emngployment in other circurnstances to the extent that any performance condition has been satisfied. Options
may be exercised on a change of control in the Company to the extent determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Board, having
regard to which performance conditions are satisfied and the portion of the vesting period which has elapsed.

Adjustments
Following an adjustment of the share capital of the Company, the Remuneration Committee of the Board may adjust the number of Ordinary
Shares under the option and/or the option exercise price.




54 Island Gas Resources plc Annual General Meeting .
Annual report and accounts 2008 Proposed business of the Annual General Meeting

Proposed business of the Annual General Meeting
continued

National insurance Contributions
If required by the Company, the optionholder must enter into an election to bear the liability to employers’ national insurance contributions
arising in relation to exercise of options.

Amendment to the Plan

The Remuneration Committee of the Board may at any time amend the rules of the EMI plan provided that if such amendment is 1o the
advantage of the optionholder it must be approved by the Company in general meeting, unless such alteration is minor and to benefit the
administration of the EMI plan or 1ake account of changes to legislation or maintain favourable taxation.

{b) The Island Gas Resources plc 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “LTIP")

The LTIP is designed to be a long-term incentive plan under which the Company may make awards based on meeting of the performance
criteria and on the condition of exit of the Company and is awarded to the individual. The value received by the individuals will be based on a
percentage of the exit value. The LTIP will be administered by the Remuneration Committee of the Board and it also gives the possibility for an
employee benefit trust to make and/or satisfy the award.

Eligibility
Awards may be given 10 all eligible employees of the Company, as selected by the Remuneration Committee of the Board.

Grant of Awards
The awards are conditional on exit of the Company and then only upon satisfaction of performance conditions during the measurement period.
Awards may take the form of cash bonuses at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee of the Board.

Limits on the Awards

In any 10 year period, the number of shares which may be issued or issuable under the LTIP and any other share plan must not exceed 10% of
the Company's issued share capital. The Remuneration Committee of the Board will also take account of the comparative value of any cash
borus awards in determining these thresholds.

Satisfaction of Awards
On exit, the LTIP awards will be awarded and con the condition that performance (riteria have been satisfied.

Tax Liability
The participant will be responsible for any income tax and employee's national insurance arising on the awards. In addition, it is the intention 1o
transfer the employers' national insurance liability in respect of the awards to the participants.

Termination of Employment

If a participant ceases to hold office cr employment with the Company and is considered a “good leaver” in accordance with the LTIP rules,
then the Remuneration Committee of the Board shall have the discretion as to whether and 10 what extent the award vests. In cases where the
participant is a “bad leaver” or the Remuneration Committee of the Board do not exercise their discretion, the award will lapse.

Amendments to the LTIP

The Remuneration Committee of the Board may at any time amend the rules of the LTIP provided that if such amendment is 1o the advantage
of the participant it must be approved by the Company in general meeting, unless such alteration is minor and 1o benefit the adrinistration of
the LTIP or take account of changes to legislation or maintain favourable taxation for the Company.

Action to be Taken

A Form of Proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is endosed. if you are a Shareholder you are advised to complete and return the form in
accordance with the instructions printed on it so as to arrive at the Company’s registrars, Computershare Investor Services plc, The Pavilions,
Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS1 8AE, as soon as possible, but in any event no later than 10:00am on Wednesday 8 July 2009.

Recommendation

The Directors consider the Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be in the best interests of the Company and its
Shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors unanimously recommend Shareholders to vote in favour of all the Resolutions, as they intend to do in
respect of their own beneficial holdings.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Island Gas Resources plc will be held at the offices of Kreab & Gavin Anderson and
Company, 85 The Strand, London, WC2R 0DW for 10:00 am on Friday 10 luly 2009, to consider, andif thought fit, pass the follm\:'ing
resolutions of which resolutions 1-7 and 11 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolutions 8-10 will be proposed as special
resolutions.

Ordinary Business

1.

6.

To receive and adopt the Company’s Annual Report and Accounis for the finandal year ended 31 Decemnber 2008 and the Directors’
Report, and the Independent Auditors’ Report on those accounts.

To receive and approve the Remuneration Report of the Directors for the financial year ended on 31 Decernber 2008 and the Independent
Auditors’ Report on the auditable part of the Remuneration Report.

To reappoint as a Director, Andrew Austin, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company's Artides of Assodation and who
being eligible is offering himself for reappointment.

To reappoint as a Director, Peter Redrmond, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and who
being eligible is offering himself for reappointment.

To reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this Meeting until the condlusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company at which accounts are laid.

Te authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.

Special Business

7

That, in substitution for all existing autheities for the allotment of shares by the Directors, which are hereby revoked but without prejudice
to any allotment, offer or agreement already made pursuant thereto, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised, pursuant to section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (the 1985 Act”) to exercise all the powers of the
Company to;

(A) aliot relevant securities (within the meaning of that section) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £10,388,273; and

(B} allot equity securities (within the meaning of Section 94(2) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £10,388,273 in
connection with a rights issue, which satisfies the conditions and may be subject to all or any of the exclusions specified in paragraph
(8)1} of the next following resolution

in each case for a period expiring (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) 15 months after the
date of the passing of this resolution or at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company following the passing of
this resolution, whichever occurs first, provided that the Company may before such expiry, variation or revocation make an offer or
agreement which would or might require such relevant or equity securities to be allotted after such expiry, variation or revocation and the
Directors may allot relevant or equity securities pursuant to such an offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not
expired or been varied ar revoked.

That, subject to and conditionally upon the passing of resolution No 7, the Direciors are hereby empowered pursuant 1o section 95 of the
1985 Act to allot equity securities (as defined by section 94(2) of the 1985 Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution
Nao 7 as if section 89(1) of the 1985 Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that such power:

{A) shall, subject to the continuance of the autherity conferred by resolution No 7, expire fifieen months after the passing of this
resolution or at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Campany following the passing of this resolution,
whichever occurs first, but may be previously revoked or varied frem time to time by Spedial Resolution but so that the Company
may before such expiry, revocation or variation make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be
allctted after such expiry, revocation or variation and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or
agreement as it such power had not expired or been revoked or varied; and

(B) shall be imited 10:

(1}  the allotment of equity securities of up to an aggregate nominal amount of £10,388,273 pursuant 1o a rghts issue, open ofier,
scrip dividend scheme or other pre-emptive offer or scheme which is in each case in favour of holders of Ordinary Shares and
any other persons who are entitled 1o participate in such issue, offer or scheme where the equity securities offered to each
such holder and other person are proportionate {as nearly as may be} to the respective numbers of Ordinary Shares held or
deemed to be held by them for the purposes of their indusion in such issue, offer or scheme on the record date applicable
thereto, but subject to such exdusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deemn fit or expedient to deal with
fractional entitlements, legal or practical problems under the laws of any overseas temitory, the requirements of any regulatory
body or stock exchange in any territory, shares being represented by depositary receipts, directions from any holders of shares
or other persons (o deal in some other manner with their respective entitiernents or any other matter whatever which the
Directors consider to require such exdusions or other arrangements with the ability for the Directors to allot equity securities
and sell relevant shares not taken up to any person as they may think fit; and

(2}  the allotment of equity securities for cash otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (3) up to an aggregate maximurm
nominal amount of £4,674,723.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

9. That Articde 26 of the Artides of Association of the Company be deleted and replaced with the following artide:

26.  Notices of general meetings

26.1

262

26.3

264

An annual general meeting shall be called by not less than 21 dear days’ notice in writing. A general meeting other than an
Annual General Meeting shall be called by not less than 14 dear days’ notice in writing. The notice shall spedfy the place, date
and time of Meeting and the general nature of that business, and there shall appear with reascnable prominence in every such
notice a staterment that a Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint ane or more proxies to attend, speak and
vote instead of him, provided that if he appoints more than one proxy each is appointed 1o exercise the rights attaching to a
different share or shares held by him, and that a proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Where satellite meeting places
are to be provided in accordance with Article 27.6 the notice shall specify such places. The notice convening an Annual
General Meeting shall specify the meeting as such, and the notice convening a meeting o pass a special resolution shalt
specify the intention to propose the resolution as a spedial resolution as the case may be and proposals relating substantially
dissimilar matters shall be incuded as separate resolitions. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, notice of every
general meeting shall be given in manner specified in Artide 55 to all Members other than suich as under the provisions of
these Artides or the 1erms of issue of the shares they hold are not entitled to receive such notices from the Company, to all
persons entitled 10 a share by reason of the death or bankruptcy of a Member or otherwise by operation of law, o all
Directors and also to the Auditors. No notice need be given to the Company in respect of any shares held by it in treasury. In
the case of shares which can be transferred using a Relevant System, the Company may, as provided in the 2001 Regulations,
determing to give notice to Members on the relevant register of securities at the dose of business on a day decided by the
Company, not being more than 21 days prior to the day on which the nctices are despatched. All other provisions of the 2001
Regulations which relate to the rights of shareholders to attend meetings shall also apply.

Notwithstanding that a general meeting of the Cornpany is called by shorter notice than that specified in Article 26.1, it shall
he deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed:

{A) in the case of a meeting called as an annual general meeting, by all the Mernbers entitled to attend and vote thereat,
and

{B} in the case of any other general meeting, by a majority in number of the Members entitled to attend and vote thereat,
being a majority together holding not less than 95 per cent. by nominal value of the shares giving that right.

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting or send any other notice or circular relating thereto or (in cases where
instruments of proxy are sent out with the notice) the acddental omission to send such instrument of proxy to, or the
non-receipt of notice of a meeting or other notice or circular relating thereto or such instrument of proxy by any person
entitled to receive such notice shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

If the Board, in its absclute discretion, considers that it is impractical or undesirable for any reason tohold a general meeting
an the date or at the time or place specified in the notice calling the gereral meeting, or on the date or at the time or place to
which the general meeting has been postponed under this Article 26.4, or adjourned, it may postpone the meeting to
another date, time or place. When a meeting is postponed for 30 days or more not less than seven days’ notice of the
pastponed meeting shall be given in like manner as in the case of the origina! meeting. Otherwise, when a meeting is
postponed, notice of the date time and place of the postponed mesting shall be placed in at least two national newspapers
circulating throughout the United Kingdom; save as aforesaid, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of the business 10 be
transacted at such postponed meeting, The arrangements mace by the Board under Article 27.1 for such general meeting
shall, unless varied, apply to the postponed meeting.

10.  That Artide 55 of the Artides of Assodation of the Company be deleted and replaced with the following article:

55.

Service of notices and other documents

55.1

55.2

Subject 1o Artide 55.2 (in relation 10 websites) and to Articles 55.3, 55.4, 55.5, and 55.6 any notice or other document may be
served on or delivered to any Member by any of the methods and in the manner in relation to each which are spedfied in
schedule 5 to the 2006 Act. A notice or other document need not be served or delivered 1o all Members in the same manner,

Where a notice or ather document is 1o be given by being placed on a website as permitied by Artide 55.1, it shall be deemed
to be duly served on a member where:

(A) the Company has first given notice to the Member in the manner required by Artide 55.1 {but not including by means of
a website) of its intention to serve notices on other documents in that manner, either in relation to all future notices or
other documents or in relation te a particular notice or other document;
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55.3

55.4

55.5

55.6

55.7

55.8

559

() the Member has agreed to receive notices or other documents by their being placed on a website as specified in the
notice referred to in Article 55.2(A) or is deemed to have so agreed by virtue of his failure 1o respond 1o such notice
within 28 days of its being sent and the member has not subsequently revoked his agreement or deermed agreement;
and

({C) the Company has, in like manner as is specified in Article 55.2(A), notified the Member of the presence of the notice or
other document on the website, the place on the website where the same may be accessed and details of how to access
the sarme on the website.

Any Member described in the Register by an address not within the United Kingdem who shall, from time to time, give to the
Company a postal address within the United Kingdom at which notices may be served upon him shall be entitled to have
notices served upon him, otherwise than by Electronic Communications or by placement on a website, at such address but,
save as aforesaid, no Member other than a Member described in the Register by an address within the United Kingdom shall
be entitled to receive any notice from the Company.

Any such notice or ather docurnent, if sent by first class post, shall be deemed to have been served or delivered 48 hours after
it was put in the past and in proving such service or delivery it shall be sufficient to prove that the notice or document was
properly addressed, prepaid and put in the post. Proof that a notice or other document contained in an Electronic
Communication was sent in accordance with guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators shall
be conclusive evidence that the notice or other document was given or sent. Any notice or other document delivered or left at
a registered address otherwise than by post shall be deemed to have been served or delivered on the day it was 5o delivered or
left. Any notice or other document contained in an Electronic Cormmunication shall be deemed to have been delivered at the
expiration of 48 hours after it was sent except that a notification of availability of a notice or other document on a website
shall be deemed to be delivered when it is sent. A notice or other document placed on a website in accordance with Article
55.2 shall be deemed to have been served on the date on which notification of the presence of the same on the website was
served or deemed to be served on the member concerned or, if ater, the date on which the notice or cther document first
appears on the website.

Any notice or other document delivered or sent by post 1o or left at the registered address of any Member or which is given by
using Electronic Communications or placement on a website in pursuance of these Articles shall, notwithstanding that such
Member is then dead or bankrupt or that any other event has occurred, and whether or not the Company has notice of the
death or bankruptey or other event, be deemed to have been duly served or delivered in respect of any share registered in the
name of such Member as sole or joint holder unless his name shall, at the time of the service or delivery of the notice or
document, have been removed from the Register as the holder of the share. Such service or delivery shall for all purposes be
deemed a sufficient service or delivery of such notice or docurnent on all persons interested (whether jointly with or as
daiming through or under him} in the share.

If at any time by reason of the suspension or curtailment of postal services within the United Kingdom, the Company is unable
eifectively 10 convene a general meeting by notices sent through the post, a general meeting may be convened by a notice
advertised on the same day in at least two leading national daily newspapers and such notice shall be deemed to have been
duly served on all Members entitled thereto at noon on the day when the advertisement appears. In any such case the
Company shall send confirmatory copies of the notice by post if at least seven days before the meeting if the posting of
notices to addresses throughous the United Kingdom again becornes practicable.

Any surnmons, notice, order or other docurment required to be sent to or served upon the Company, or upen any officer of
the Company, whether by a Member or otherwise, may be sent or served by any of the methods and in the manner in relation
to each which are specified in schedule 4 to the 2006 Act.

Any netice or other document may be served or delivered by the Company by reference to the Register as it stands at any time
not more than 21 days before the date of dispatch by the Company. No change in the Register after that time shall invalidate
that service or delivery. Where any notice or other document is served on, or delivered to, any person in respect of a share in
accordance with these Articles, no person deriving any title or interest in that share shall be entitled to any further service or
delivery of that notice or document and shall be bound by such notice or document.

Nothing in any of the preceding Artides shall affect any requirement of the Companies Acts that any particular offer, notice or
other document be served in any particular manner.

and that the words “but not including the placing of a document on a website” be deleted in their entirety from the definition of
"Electronic Communication” set out in Artide 2 of the Artides of Association.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

11, That the share incentive schemes comprising the Island Gas Resources plc 2009 EMI Share Option Plan and the Island Gas Resources plc
2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan {together the “Share Plans™), copies of which are now produced to the Meeting and initialted by the
Chairman for the purposes of identification, be approved and adopted by shareholders subject to the Remuneration Committee of the
Board having discretion to make such minar amendments to the rufes of the Share Plans as they see fit.

1% June 2009

By Order of the Board

MoFo Secretaries Limited
International House

1-6 Yarmouth Street

London W1) 78U

Registered in England & Wales
Company No: 04981279

Notes

m

2

(3

@

(5)

A Shareholder entitled 1o attend and vote at the meeting is alsc entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote on a show of hands and on a polt instead of him
o her, A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Where a Sharehalder appoints more than one proxy, each proxy must be appointed in respect of different shares comprised
in his or her shareholding which must be identified on the proxy form. Each such proxy will have the right to vate on a pollin respect of the number of votes attaching 1o the
number of shares in respect of which the proxy has been appointed, Where more than one joint Shareholder purparts to appoint a proxy in respect of the same shares, onty the
appuintment by the most senior Shareholder will be accepted as determined by the order in which thetr names appear in the Company’s register of members. If you wash your
proxy to speak at the meeting, you should appoint a proxy other than the chairman of the meeting and give your instructions to that proxy.

To be effective an instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which i is executed (of a notanally certified copy of such authority) must be deposted at the offices of
Computershare Investor Services ple, at The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS13 BAE not later than 10:00 am on Wednesday 8 July 2009 except that, (a} should the meeting be
adjourned, such deposit may be made not later than 48 hours before the time of the adjourned meeting and (&) in the case of a poll taken morse than 48 hours after it was
demanded, such deposit may be made not later than 24 hours befere the time appointed for the 1aking of the poll. A Form of Proxy is enclosed with this notice, Sharehalders wha
intend 1o appeint more than one proxy can obtain addtional Forms of Proxy from Computershare lnvestor Services ple. Alternatively, the form provided may be photocopied prior
10 completion. The Forms of Proky should be retumed in the same envelope and each should indicate that it is one of more than one appointments being made. Completion and
return of the Form of Proxy will not preclude Shareholders from attending and voting in person at the meeting.

An abstention (or “vote withheld™) option has been included on the Form of Proxy. The legal effect of choosing the abstention option on any resciution is that the shareholder
concerned will be treated as not having vated on the relevant resolution, The number of votes in respect of which there are abstentions will however be counted and recorded, but
disregarded in calculating the number of votes for or against each resolution.

In accordance with Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company specifies that only those Sharehatders registered in the register of members of the
Company as at 10:00 am on Wednesday 8 July 2609 o, in the event that the meeting i adjourned, in such register not later than 48 hours before the time of the adiourned
meeting, shall be entitled 1o attend, or vote (whether in person or by proxy) at the meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their names at the relevart time.
Changes after the relevant time will be disregarded in deterrmining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting,

in order to facilitate voting by corperate representatives at the meeting, arrangements will be put in place at the meeting so that () if a corporate shareholder has appointed the
Chairman of the meeting as its corporate representative with instructions 1o vote o6 a poll in accordance with the directions of al the other corporate representatives for that
shareholder at the meeting who have been appointed in respect of differem parts of the holding of that corporate shareholder then on a poll those carporate representatives will
give voting directions 1o the Chairman and the Chairman will vote {or withhold a vote) in respect of each different part of the sharehalding as corporate representative in accordance
with the directians he has received from such corporate representatives in relation 10 the respective parts of the shareholding in respect of which they are each appointed o (i) if
more than ona corporate reprasentative for the same corporate sharehoider attends the meeting but the corparate shareholder has not appointed the Chairman of the meeting as
its cofporate representative, a designated corporate representative will be nominated, from those corporate represenzatives who attend, who will vote on a poll in accordance with
the drections he receives from the other corporate representatives in respect of the parts of the corporate shareholders shareholding in respect of which such corporate
representatives have each been appointed. Corporate shareholders are referred 1o the guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators on proxies and
corporate representatives = www.icsa org.uk — for further details of this procedure. The guidance includes a sample form of representation letter if the Chairman is being appointed
as described in (i) above.
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